

WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads Environment Plan Summary

Exploration Division

July 2018

Revision 0

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	.6
1.1	Defining the Activity	. 6
2.	LOCATION OF THE ACTIVITY	.7
3.	DESCRIPTION OF THE ACTIVITY	.9
3.1	Purpose of the Activity	. 9
3.2	Timing of the Activities	. 9
3.3	Well Exploration and Abandonment History	. 9
3.3.1	Remy-1	. 9
3.3.2	Kelt-1	. 9
3.3.3	Noblige-2	10
3.3.4	Martin-1	10
3.4	Wellheads Composition	11
3.5	Selection of Well Fluids	11
4.	DESCRIPTION OF THE RECEIVING ENVIRONMENT	13
4.1	Regional and Deep Water Context	13
4.2	Physical Environment	14
4.3	Biological environment	14
4.3.1	Benthic communities	14
4.3.2	Habitat Formation on the Wellheads	
4.3.3	Plankton	15
4.3.4	Species	15
4.4	Socio-Economic and Cultural	
4.5	Values and Sensitivities	18
5.	COMPARATIVE ASSESSMENT	19
5.1	Base Case – Wellhead Removal	19
5.2	Option 1 – Leaving Wellheads in-situ	20
5.3	Option 2 – Partial Wellhead Removal	20
5.3.1	Kelt-1, Noblige-2 and Remy-1	
5.3.2	Martin-1	21
5.4	Conclusion	21
6.	ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND RISKS	22
6.1	Risk Identification and Evaluation	22
6.1.1	Establish the Context	23
6.1.2	Risk Identification	
6.1.3	Risk Analysis	23
6.1.3.1	Decision Support Framework	
6.1.3.2	Identification of Control Measures	24
6.1.3.3	Risk Rating Process	
6.1.4	Impact and Risk evaluation	26
6.1.4.1	Demonstration of ALARP	26
6.1.4.2	Demonstration of Acceptability	27

6.2	Potential Environment Risks not included within the Scope of the Environment Plan	27
7.	ENVIRONMENTAL RISK AND IMPACTS SUMMARY	30
8.	ONGOING MONITORING OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE	32
8.1	Environment Plan Revisions and Management of Change	32
9.	CONSULTATION	33
10.	TITLEHOLDER NOMINATED LIAISON PERSON	34
11.	ABBREVIATIONS	35
12.	REFERENCES	36
APPEN	IDIX A: ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND RISKS	50
Physica	I Presence: Disturbance to Seabed and Benthic Habitat	51
Non-rou	tine Discharges to the Marine Environment	53
Physica	I Presence: Accidental Future Impacts to Commercial Fishing	54
APPEN	IDIX B: SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK AND WOODSIDE'S RESPONSE	56

List of Tables

Table 2-1: Locations details for the Petroleum Activities Program	7
Table 3-1: Remy-1, Martin-1, Kelt-1 and Noblige-2 top section drilling fluid formation	11
Table 3-2: Ultradrill WBM drilling fluid formation	12
Table 4-1 Threatened and migratory marine species under the EPBC Act potentially occurr	ing with
the Well Abandonment Area	
Table 6-1: Woodside Risk Matrix (environment and social and cultural) consequence desc	riptions
	24
Table 6-2: Woodside risk matrix likelihood levels	25
Table 6-3: Summary of Woodside's criteria for ALARP demonstration	
Table 6-4: Summary of Woodside's criteria for Acceptability	
Table 6-5 Environmental risks that were assessed as not being credible.	
Table 7-1: Environmental Risk and Impacts Register Summary	
Table 9-1: Relevant Stakeholder Identified for the Petroleum Activities Program	33
-	

List of Figures

Figure 2-1: Location of Petroleum Activities Program	7
Figure 3-1: OCNS ranking scheme	12
Figure 6-1: Key steps in Woodside's Risk Management Framework	
Figure 6-2: Woodside risk matrix: risk level	

1. INTRODUCTION

Woodside Energy Ltd (Woodside), as Titleholder, under the *Offshore Petroleum and Greenhouse Gas Storage (Environment) Regulations 2009* (referred to as the Environment Regulations), proposes to permanently leave in-situ, the Kelt-1, Martin-1, Noblige-2 and Remy-1 exploration wellheads in exploration permit WA-404-P, hereafter referred to as the Petroleum Activities Program.

This Environment Plan (EP) Summary has been prepared to meet the requirements of Regulations 11(3) and 11(4) under the Environment Regulations, as administered by the National Offshore Petroleum Safety and Environmental Management Authority (NOPSEMA). This document summarises the WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads Environment Plan, accepted by NOPSEMA under Regulation 10A of the Environment Regulations.

1.1 Defining the Activity

The Petroleum Activities Program to be undertaken in permit area WA-404-P, involves no further activities and comprises of permanently leaving the existing Kelt-1, Martin-1, Noblige-2 and Remy-1 wellheads and associated infrastructure in-situ.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 6 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

2. LOCATION OF THE ACTIVITY

The proposed Petroleum Activities Program is located in Permit Area WA-404-P which lies on the Exmouth Plateau of the Carnarvon Basin in Commonwealth waters approximately 280 km north-west of Dampier in Western Australia.



Figure 2-1: Location of Petroleum Activities Program

An Operational Area will be implemented around each of the four wellheads (500 m radius). The Wellhead Operational Area defines the spatial boundary of the petroleum activities that will be managed under the EP. Transit to and from the Wellhead Operational Area by support vessels, installation vessels and drill rigs/ships; and, port activities associated with the support vessels, is not within the scope of the EP.

Activity	Water Depth (Approx. m LAT)	Height of well structure (m)	Latitude	Longitude
Remy-1*	1,296	~1	-19°23'59.28"	114°18'42.81"
Kelt-1	1,445	2.38	-19°13'55.14"	114°25'33.29"

Table 2-1: Locations	details for the Pet	roleum Activities Program
		a cioann / toti fitico i i ogrann

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 7 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.
 Version: 0
 Version: 0
 Version: 0

Activity	Water Depth (Approx. m LAT)	Height of well structure (m)	Latitude	Longitude
Noblige-2	1,324	4.37	-19°24'35.25"	114°20'36.32"
Martin-1	1,346	3.78	-19°25'32.94"	114°22'34.14"

*Remy-1 also has 234 m of 20" well casing associated with the wellhead.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 8 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE ACTIVITY

3.1 **Purpose of the Activity**

As per subsection 572(3) of the OPGGS Act, the base case for decommissioning the four wellheads and associated infrastructure is complete removal. This was compared to other reasonable options in a comparative assessment (for full details, see Section 3.5). As a result of the comparative assessment, it was demonstrated that the four exploration/appraisal wellheads (Remy-1, Kelt-1, Noblige-2 and Martin-1) and 234 m of well casing being left in-situ permanently gives an equal or better environmental and safety outcome when compared to this base case. The well integrity outcome does not change for any option considered as all wells have been permanently plugged and abandoned.

As a result, the wellheads and associated infrastructure will be left in-situ permanently, to satisfy the current license commitment, under Petroleum Exploration Permit requirements issued under the OPGGS Act.

Timing of the Activities 3.2

The proposed Petroleum Activities Program involves leaving the Remy-1, Martin-1, Kelt-1 and Noblige-2 wellheads permanently in-situ in WA-404-P. This Petroleum Activities Program itself ended on acceptance of the EP by NOPSEMA. As the accepted EP proposed leaving the wellheads in place, no further action will be undertaken.

3.3 Well Exploration and Abandonment History

3.3.1 Remy-1

The Remy-1 well was drilled by the semi-submersible drilling rig Ocean America in 2010. The well was drilled under the Remy-1 Environment Plan Bridging Document and the North West Shelf Drilling and Completions EP, both approved by the Department of Mines and Petroleum (DMP), the offshore environment Regulator at the time. Water depth at the location is 1,296 m at lowest astronomical tide (LAT) and the rotary table elevation was 26.2 m.

The Ocean America arrived on location on 4 October 2010 and Remy-1 was spudded on 7 October 2010. Remy-1 was drilled to 2,329 mRT (meters below the rotary table), where the 20" casing string became mechanically stuck down hole during the running process. Several attempts were made over 24 hours to free the casing and remove the wellhead, however operations were ultimately unsuccessful and the casing was laid onto the seabed as there were no alternate recovery options available. As a result, the well casing became partially buried and the wellhead and casing were left on the seabed and the DMP advised.

As the Remy-1 well did not intersect hydrocarbons or over-pressure zones, no well barriers for abandonment were required. Woodside submitted the Remy-1 Abandonment Program to the DMP under regulation 17, Part 4 (1)(d) of the Petroleum (Submerged Lands) (Management of Well Operations) Regulations 2004. The DMP approved the abandonment of the Remy-1 exploration well on 25 November 2010.

The well was drilled with water based muds (WBM) (see Section 3.5), and some residual components of the mud may remain in trace amounts within the well.

3.3.2 Kelt-1

The Kelt-1 well is located in the northern section of exploration permit WA-404-P. The well was drilled by the semi-submersible drilling rig Maersk Discoverer under the Kelt-1 Exploration Well Environment

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Page 9 of 72

Plan Bridging Document and associated Drilling & Completions – North West Shelf Environment Plan Revision 5 both approved by the DMP.

The Maersk Discoverer arrived on location on 5 July 2011 and the well was spudded on the 6 July 2011. The well was drilled to a total depth of 4,260 mRT, which was reached on 5 August 2011. Woodside submitted the Kelt-1 Abandonment Program to the National Offshore Petroleum Safety Authority (NOPSA) under regulation 5.23 of the Offshore Petroleum and Greenhouse Storage (Resource Management and Administration) Regulations 2011. NOPSA approved the abandonment of the Kelt-1 exploration well on 8 August 2011.

The Kelt-1 exploration well abandonment activities were conducted in accordance with the NOPSA approved Kelt-1 Abandonment Program, as well as the Kelt-1 Well Operations Management Plan and Kelt-1 Drilling and Testing programmes, both of which were approved by the DMP. As the well did not intersect hydrocarbons or over-pressure zones, the plug and abandonment (P&A) program was undertaken as per the requirements for a "dry-hole" in the Woodside Engineering Standard – Well Barriers, requiring only a single permanent barrier (cement plug) to be installed.

Following the installation and testing of the permanent barrier, Woodside removed the blow out preventer (BOP) and attempted to mechanically cut the well casing between 2.9 m and 12.0 m below the mudline to retrieve the wellhead assembly. Three attempts were made over three days to mechanically cut and retrieve the wellhead from Kelt- 1, but operations were ultimately unsuccessful. The inability to cut the wellhead was mainly attributed to the missing centralization of 20" casing within 36" conductor. As such, the wellhead assembly, extending 2.38 m above the mudline, was left in-situ, and the DMP advised.

Only seawater remains within the well above the top cement plug.

3.3.3 Noblige-2

Noblige-2 is a vertical appraisal well drilled between the existing discoveries Noblige-1 and Martin-1. The well was spudded on the 17 August 2011, reaching the total depth of 4,670 mRT on 20 September 2011. The well was drilled by the Maersk Discoverer semi-submersible drilling rig under the Noblige-2 Appraisal Well Environment Plan Bridging Document and Drilling & Completions – North West Shelf Environment Plan Revision 5 both approved by DMP.

At the completion of drilling and evaluation, the Noblige-2 well was plugged and abandoned, consistent with the Woodside Engineering Standard – Well Barriers, Woodside Well Barrier Guidelines and the approved Noblige-2 Drilling Program. The Noblige-2 Drilling Program included the provision to leave the wellhead on the seabed. NOPSA approved the Drilling Program for the Noblige-2 appraisal well on 27 July 2011. As the well intersected hydrocarbons, the P&A program was undertaken as per the requirements for a well containing hydrocarbons, requiring two permanent barriers (cement plugs) to be installed.

Following the installation and testing of the permanent barrier, Woodside removed the BOP and attempted to mechanically cut the well casing between 2.9 m and 12.0 m below the mudline to retrieve the wellhead assembly. Three attempts were made over three days to mechanically cut and retrieve the wellhead from Noblige-2, but operations were ultimately unsuccessful. The inability to cut the wellhead was mainly attributed to the missing centralization of 20" casing within 36" conductor. As such, the wellhead assembly, extending 4.4 m above the mudline, was left in-situ, and the DMP advised.

Only seawater remains within the well above the top cement plug.

3.3.4 Martin-1

The Martin-1 well was drilled by the semi-submersible drilling rig Maersk Discoverer under the Martin-1 Exploration Well Environment Plan Bridging Document. The rig arrived on location on 13 December

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.						
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523	Revision: 0	Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523	Page 10 of 72			
Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.						

2010 and the well was spudded on 15 December 2010. After several interruptions to drilling due to cyclones, Martin-1 was drilled to a final total depth of 4778.0 mRT, reached on 13 March 2011. After logging, Martin-1 was suspended as 'gas proven' with a series of permanent cement plugs. The rig was released from contract on 3 April 2011.

Martin-1 was 'suspended' with permanent downhole barriers installed. These consist of a series of cement plugs (four stacked plugs on the bottom with a fifth plug above). Martin-1 was suspended for a potential future side-track.

Well abandonment procedures and reservoir isolations performed for Martin-1 well was submitted to NOPSEMA as Martin-1 Well Abandonment Assessment in 2017. The assessment demonstrated the adequacy of the downhole barriers such that the wells have been classed as permanently abandoned. NOSPEMA reviewed the submission and confirmed they are "reasonably satisfied" that the process undertaken in setting permanent downhole barriers meets the requirement of the Well Operations Management Plan (WOMP). The letter confirming satisfaction is Martin-1 - NOPSEMA Ref. R015645: ID4211: A573656, dated 4 October 2017.

The well was drilled with WBM and some residual amounts are expected to be present within the well. The well was suspended with a wellhead cap or 'trash cap' covering the well opening 3.78 m above seabed. No corrosion inhibitor was displaced under it.

3.4 Wellheads Composition

The wellheads are all made of mild steel (AISI 4130), with small amounts of elastomeric materials such as Teflon and Viton used within the seal components. All the wellheads have 36 inch diameter conductors and are all DrillQuip SS-10 model. Only Remy-1 has a mud-mat installed. All the other wellheads have a simple conductor. No Temporary Guide Base (TGB) or Permanent Guide Base (PGB) systems were installed on any of the wells.

The total weight of the steel material, which consists of the 36" conductor plus a low and high pressure wellhead elements and the 20" casing, varies very little between the wellheads. The total weight of the infrastructure left on the seabed has been estimated at 7500 kg per wellhead.

The 20" drill casing remaining on the seabed at Remy-1 is made of carbon steel grade X56 (equivalent to the German Class E 385, 7). The casing is approximately 16.1 mm thick and would weigh approximately 192 kg/m2 resulting in a total weight of 45,000 kg.

3.5 Selection of Well Fluids

The top section of each well was drilled riserless with water based drilling fluid. The drilling fluid was seawater and the additives for this top section were a high viscosity pill (guar gum) and pre-hydrated gel (bentonite clay). The environmental toxicity of these chemicals is presented in **Table 3-1**.

Table 3-1: Remy-1, Martin-1, Kelt-1 and Noblige-2 top section drilling fluid formation

Component	Function	OCNS Ranking
Guar gum	Viscocifier	E
Bentonite clay	Pre-hydrated gel	E

These well fluids are listed as 'E' category fluids under the Offshore Chemical Notification Scheme (OCNS). These rankings are based on toxicity and other relevant parameters such as biodegradation, and bioaccumulation, in accordance with one of two schemes (as shown in **Table 3-1**):

• Hazard Quotient (HQ) Colour Band: Gold, Silver, White, Blue, Orange and Purple (listed in order of increasing environmental hazard); or

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.						
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523	Revision: 0	Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523	Page 11 of 72			
Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.						

• **OCNS Grouping**: E, D, C, B or A (listed in order of increasing environmental hazard). Used for inorganic substances, hydraulic fluids and pipeline chemicals only.

Hazard Quotient Colour Band	Gold	Silver	v	Vhite	Blu	e	Orange	Purple
OCNS Grouping	E	D		(0		В	А
Lowest Hazard Highest								

Figure 3-1: OCNS ranking scheme

Following installation of permanent reservoir isolation cement barriers, the wells (between the top cement plug and the wellhead) and the A-annulus, were filled with seawater for all wells except Martin-1. Martin-1 had WBM (Ultradrill) still inside the top section of the well. Ultradrill whole fluids and fluid components are classified as 'non-toxic'. The drilling mud system formulation used for the drilling activity is shown in **Table 3-2**.

The Ultradrill within Martin-1 is expected to have degraded rapidly with time and with well temperature (<1 year). There may be residual amounts of these non-toxic components settled out from the seawater, if complete degradation has not occurred. These will have settled on top of the top cement plug, 2.6 km below the seabed.

Component	Function	Concentration Range
Seawater/Drill water	-	As required
Na ₂ CO ₃	Drill water hardness control	0.25 – 0.6 kg/m ³
KCI/NaCI	Clay stabilisation	0 – 76 kg/m ³
Polyanionic cellulose	Fluid loss control and viscosifier	2.5 – 8.5 kg/m ³
Acrylic acid co- polymer	Cutting's encapsulation and stabilisation	2.5 – 8.5 kg/m ³
Olefin ester blend	Anticrete – rate of penetration	3%
	enhancer	
Xanthan gum polymer	Viscosifier	1.3 – 2.5 kg/m ³
Polyamine	Shale stabiliser	3%

Table 3-2: Ultradrill	WBM drilling fluid formation
-----------------------	------------------------------

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 12 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE RECEIVING ENVIRONMENT

The following is a summary of the main environment characteristics identified for the Wellhead **Operational Area:**

- Located within offshore waters, within deep waters of the aphotic bathypelagic zone (depths within the Wellhead Operational Area range between 1,297 m and 1,446 m);
- Relatively flat and featureless seabed comprising of soft sediments, including fine grained muddy sands, silts and detritus material sourced from shallower waters. There is a lack of hard substratum present;
- The Exmouth Plateau Key Ecological Feature (KEF) overlaps the Remy-1 and Noblige-2 Operational Areas. The Exmouth Plateau KEF is a geomorphic feature, and may enhance upwelling of nutrient rich seawater;
- Benthic communities are expected to be of low abundance and low diversity within the Wellhead Operational Area, and consistent with much of the broader North-west Province (NWP);
- Twenty-two species considered to be Matters of National Environmental Significance (MNES) were identified as potentially occurring within the Wellhead Operational Area. No Biologically Important Areas (BIAs) overlap with the Wellhead Operational Area; and
- Four Commonwealth fisheries and four State fisheries overlap the Wellhead Operational Area, however little fishing effort occurs due to the Operational Area's water depth and distance from shore.

Regional and Deep Water Context 4.1

The Wellhead Operational Area is located in Commonwealth waters within the North-west Marine Region (NWMR) (Figure 4-1) as defined under the Integrated Marine and Coastal Regionalisation of Australia (National Oceans Office and Geoscience Australia, 2005). The NWMR is further divided into provinces, and the Wellhead Operational Area is located with the North-west Province (NWP) of the NWMR. The NWP is located between Exmouth and Port Hedland and covers a total area of 188,730 km2 (DEWHA, 2008; Heap et al., 2005).

The wellheads lie within the deep waters of the aphotic bathypelagic zone of the NWP on the edge of the Exmouth Plateau within the Montebello Trough. Water depths at the four wellheads range between 1,297 m and 1,446 m where the seabed is characterised as being relatively flat and featureless comprising of soft sediments, including fine grained muddy sands, silts and detritus material sourced from shallower waters (Falkner et al., 2009). There is a lack of hard substratum present on the Exmouth Plateau, where Wellhead Operational Area is located (DSEWPaC, 2012a).

The bathypelagic zone is characterised by cold, oxygen and nutrient rich water which receives very little (<1%) sunlight. Below the thermocline, water temperature typically continues to decrease with depth and near-seabed temperatures are expected to be very low (<6°C). As a result, photosynthesis is unable to take place in this zone and nearly all available nutrients result from detritus material (i.e. the remains of plants and animals) drifting down to this zone from more productive waters of the epipelagic and mesopelagic zones. The Exmouth Plateau KEF, which overlaps the Wellhead Operational Area of Remy-1 and Noblige-2, is a region of upwelling, where deep, cool and nutrientrich waters are forced up into the photic zone (DSEWPaC, 2012a).

These deep water areas of soft substrate typically support a low abundance, richness and diversity of benthic communities, and areas of hard substrate typically support more diverse epibenthic communities (Heyward et al., 2001b). The deep water depth and the presence of mostly fine grained

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GE1400702523 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Desister 0

folled Ref No:	A3000GF1400792523	Revision: 0	Native file DRIVIS N

Page 13 of 72

sediments with a lack of hard substrate suggests abundances and diversity will be low. Habitats within the Wellhead Operational Area are further discussed in **Section 4.3.3**.

4.2 Physical Environment

Bathymetry

The Wellhead Operational Area is located within the Exmouth Basin sub-region of the NWP, in a feature known as the Montebello Trough. Water depths at the four wellheads range between 1,297 m and 1,446 m where the seabed is characterised as being relatively flat and featureless. Although Remy-1 and Noblige-2 Operational Areas overlap the Exmouth Plateau KEF, the area it overlaps is flat, and is adjacent to where the bathymetry slopes steeply up to the relatively flat plateau.

Marine Sediments

Deep water sediments within the Wellhead Operational Area comprise fine carbonate sands and silts derived from marine detritus from the water column above. Carbonate sediments generally account for the bulk of sediment composition, with both biogenic and precipitated sediments present on the outer shelf of the Exmouth Plateau sub-region where the Operational Area lies. Marine sediment in the Wellhead Operational Area is expected to consist of fine grained muddy sands and silts, typical of the deep water seabed in the region.

4.3 Biological environment

No Critical Habitats or Threatened Ecological Communities as listed under the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999* (EPBC Act) are known to occur within the Wellhead Operational Area.

4.3.1 Benthic communities

Deep water areas of soft substrate like those found in the Wellhead Operational Area typically support a low abundance, richness and diversity of benthic communities. However, areas of hard substrate in deep water areas typically support more diverse epibenthic communities. Although little information exists on benthic communities over the NWP, the presence of soft sediments and limited hard substrate suggests the region may support some patchy distributions of filter feeders and other epifauna, including mobile epibenthos (e.g. sea cucumbers, ophiuroids, echinoderms, polychaetes and sea-pens (Brewer et al., 2007).

Benthic communities which may be present within the Wellhead Operational Area include epifauna (filter and deposit feeders living on the surface of the seabed, e.g. sponges) and infauna (animals living in sediments, e.g. polychaetes). The absence of hard substrate is considered a limiting factor for the recruitment of epibenthic organisms.

Sedimentary infauna associated with soft unconsolidated sediments such as those of the Wellhead Operational Area, is known to be widespread and well represented along the continental shelf and upper slopes in the NWP region. Consequently, in the context of the contiguous extent of habitats across the region, benthic habitat within the Wellhead Operational Area, which consists primarily of soft unconsolidated sediments, is considered to be of relatively low environmental sensitivity.

A deepwater ROV survey conducted by Woodside in waters between 821 and 2,038 m depths off the coast of WA identified benthic associated species across four distinct well sites. At the survey location most consistent with depths, sediment and geomorphology of the Wellhead Operational Area, benthic fauna encountered were mainly echinoderms (e.g. sea cucumbers and sea stars) (Bryce et al., 2015). Distinct signs of infaunal bioturbators and potential mounds created by burrowing fish were also noted; however, abundance was found to be generally low (Bryce et al., 2015). Although, benthic filter feeders and other epifauna and infauna are likely to inhabit the Wellhead Operational Area, water

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.						
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Page 14 of 72						
Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.						

depth and the presence of mostly fine grained sediments with a lack of hard substrate suggests abundances and diversity will be low, and consistent with much of the broader NWP.

4.3.2 Habitat Formation on the Wellheads

No surveys have been undertaken to assess the benthic habitat that has formed on these four wellheads and associated infrastructure over the last decade. However, a comparison has been drawn to a study undertaken by McLean et al. (2017). The study provides the first assessment of fish assemblages and habitat-forming marine growth associated with oil and gas wellheads and associated infrastructure in depths of 78-825 m on the north-west shelf of Western Australia. ROV video was analysed for 25 wellheads including one wellhead at 825 m water depth (PLA05). The ROV video of the PLA05 wellhead recorded one individual belonging to the family Moridae (cod-like fish). The wellhead had approximately 12% cover of epibiota, which was a similar percentage cover to the wellheads in the Wellhead Operational Area at the time of the ROV survey (7 years old), though given the well was a production wellhead assembly rather than an exploration wellhead configuration, it had a significantly larger surface area and far more complex structure for shelter for fauna when compared to the wellheads within the Wellhead Operational Area.

4.3.3 Plankton

Phytoplankton within the Wellhead Operational Area are expected to reflect the conditions of the NWMR. Primary productivity of the NWMR appears to be largely driven by offshore influences (as reported by Brewer et al., 2007), with periodic upwelling events and cyclonic influences driving coastal productivity with nutrient recycling and advection. There is a tendency for offshore phytoplankton communities in the NWMR to be characterised by smaller taxa (e.g. bacteria), whereas, shelf waters are dominated by larger taxa such as diatoms (Hanson et al., 2007).

Zooplankton within the Wellhead Operational Area is expected to be similar to offshore waters in the NWP and may include organisms that complete their lifecycle as plankton (e.g. copepods, euphausiids) as well as larval stages of other taxa such as fishes, corals and molluscs. Peaks in zooplankton such as mass coral spawning events (typically in March and April) (Rosser and Gilmour, 2008; Simpson et al., 1993b) and fish larvae abundance can occur throughout the year (CALM, 2005).

4.3.4 Species

A total of twenty-two EPBC Act listed species considered to be MNES (i.e. listed as threatened or migratory) were identified as potentially occurring within the Wellhead Operational Area (**Table 4-1**). Of these eleven are considered threatened marine species and all are considered migratory species under the EPBC Act.

A review of the Conservation Values Atlas identified found no listed BIAs overlap the Wellhead Operational Area.

 Table 4-1 Threatened and migratory marine species under the EPBC Act potentially occurring with the Well Abandonment Area

Species Name Common Name	Threatened Status	Migratory Status	Relevant to Petroleum Activities Program ¹
--------------------------	----------------------	---------------------	--

¹ The habitat that the species uses has been considered and where the habitat is not considered likely to occur in the Operational Area (as defined in **Section 2**, which includes only 20 m of water above the seabed), the species is not considered relevant as it would not be impacted by the Petroleum Activities Program, and as such, have not been discussed further.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.						
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523	Revision: 0	Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523	Page 15 of 72			
Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.						

Mammals				
Balaenoptera borealis	Sei Whale	Vulnerable	Migratory	No
Balaenoptera musculus	Blue Whale	Endangered	Migratory	No
Balaenoptera physalus	Fin Whale	Vulnerable	Migratory	No
Megaptera novaeangliae	Humpback Whale	Vulnerable	Migratory	No
Balaenoptera edeni	Bryde's Whale	N/A	Migratory	No
Orcinus orca	Killer Whale, Orca	N/A	Migratory	No
Physeter macrocephalus	Sperm Whale	N/A	Migratory	No
Reptiles				
Caretta caretta	Loggerhead Turtle	Endangered	Migratory	No
Chelonia mydas	Green Turtle	Vulnerable	Migratory	No
Dermochelys coriacea	Leatherback Turtle, Leathery Turtle, Luth	Endangered	Migratory	No
Eretmochelys imbricata	Hawksbill Turtle	Vulnerable	Migratory	No
Natator depressus	Flatback Turtle	Vulnerable	Migratory	No
Sharks and Rays				
Carcharodon carcharias	White Shark, Great White Shark	Vulnerable	Migratory	No
Isurus oxyrinchus	Shortfin Mako, Mako Shark	N/A	Migratory	No
Isurus paucus	Longfin Mako	N/A	Migratory	No
Manta birostris	Giant Manta Ray, Chevron Manta Ray, Pacific Manta Ray, Pelagic Manta Ray, Oceanic Manta Ray	N/A	Migratory	No
Mammals		·		
Calidris canutus	Red Knot, Knot	Endangered	Migratory	No
Actitis hypoleucos	Common Sandpiper	N/A	Migratory	No
Anous stolidus	Common Noddy	N/A	Migratory	No
Calidris acuminata	Sharp-tailed Sandpiper	N/A	Migratory	No
Calidris melanotos	Pectoral Sandpiper	N/A	Migratory	No
Fregata ariel	Lesser Frigatebird, Least Frigatebird	N/A	Migratory	No

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 16 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

4.4 Socio-Economic and Cultural

Cultural Heritage

There are no known sites of Indigenous or European cultural heritage significance within the vicinity of the Wellhead Operational Area.

A search of the Australian National Shipwreck Database indicated that there are no known historic shipwrecks within the Wellhead Operational Area (DoEE, 2018).

There are no known National or Commonwealth heritage listed sites within the Wellhead Operational Area.

Commonwealth and State Fisheries

Little fishing effort occurs in the Wellhead Operational Area due to the water depth and distance from shore. Commonwealth fisheries designated management areas overlapping the Wellhead Operational Area include:

- North West Slope Trawl Fishery;
- Southern Bluefin Tuna Fishery;
- Western Skipjack Fishery; and
- Western Tuna and Billfish Fishery.

Four State fisheries designated management areas overlap the Wellhead Operational Area. These include:

- Mackerel Managed Fishery;
- South West Coast Salmon Managed Fishery;
- West Coast Deep Sea Crustacean Managed Fishery; and
- Pearl Oyster Managed Fishery.

Tourism and Recreational Fishing

No tourism activities have been identified which take place specifically within the Wellhead Operational Area due to the water depths and distance offshore. Recreational fishing is highly unlikely to occur in the Wellhead Operational Area.

Shipping Activity

No shipping fairways intersect the Wellhead Operational Area; however, a major route to and from the port of Fremantle lies approximately 40 km west of the Wellhead Operational Area. AMSA confirmed vessel traffic does currently occur above the Wellhead Operational Area but is sparse. Traffic associated with the main shipping fairway to the west of the Wellhead Operational Area is mainly within, or to the west of the fairway.

Oil and Gas Infrastructure

The NWMR supports a number of industries including petroleum exploration and production, as well as minerals extraction. The Wellhead Operational Area is approximately 96 km north-west of the Wheatstone Platform and 99 km north-west of the Pluto platform; Chevron and Woodside are the operators of these facilities respectively.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 17 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

Defence

No known defence areas overlap the Wellhead Operational Area; however, there are designated defence practice areas in the offshore marine waters off Ningaloo and the North West Cape.

4.5 Values and Sensitivities

Many sensitive receptor locations are protected as part of Commonwealth and State managed areas, however, none of these overlap the Wellhead Operational Area. The benthic offshore environment of the Wellhead Operational Area does overlap with the Exmouth Plateau KEF. The KEF overlaps the Wellhead Operational Area for the Remy-1 and Noblige-2 wellheads. No other sensitive areas including Australian Marine Parks (formerly Commonwealth Marine Reserves), State Marine Parks and Reserves, World Heritage Areas, protected species habitats or other KEFs occur within the Wellhead Operational Area.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 18 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

5. COMPARATIVE ASSESSMENT

The base case for decommissioning the four wellheads and associated infrastructure is complete removal, as per subsection 572(3) OPGGS Act. However, the Act also allows for alternative arrangements under subsection 270(3), as long as the alternative delivers equal or better environmental, safety and well integrity outcomes compared to complete removal, and that the approach complies with all other legislative and regulatory requirements. This is outlined in the Offshore Petroleum Decommissioning Guideline, effective 17 January 2018.

As part of an initial screening assessment, seven decommissioning options were identified with four deemed unsuitable. The three suitable options included:

- Complete removal of all four wellheads (base case);
- Leave in-situ all four wellheads; and
- Partial removal (leave approximately 1 m of well casing protruding above the seabed).

These were taken forward for further assessment using a comparative assessment. The comparative assessment process, based on UK Guidelines for Comparative Assessment in Decommissioning Programmes and applied to the OPGGS Act, evaluates the impacts, risks (and benefits) of each permanent wellhead management option, against a range of set criteria. The assessment criteria used for comparison of the wellhead management options included:

- Legislation/codes/standards;
- Technical feasibility;
- Health and safety;
- Environment;
- Social Economic; and
- Cost.

During the comparative assessment process, the impacts, risks and benefits of the three suitable options were identified and ranked in a multi-disciplinary workshop. The rankings were then compared.

5.1 Base Case – Wellhead Removal

Attempting to completely remove the wellheads (using a mechanical cutter) has been assessed as having High technical feasibility risks due to the water depth, limited stabilisation which cannot be overcome easily at this depth, and because the removal of three of the wellheads have already been attempted using this method, and was operationally unsuccessful.

The activity would also have High health and safety risks as a result of wellheads removal activities such as lifting a wellhead which has no dedicated lift points (which could result in loss of load onto vessel or Mobile Offshore Drilling Unit (MODU) deck, resulting in damage to personnel). However, it is acknowledged that Woodside has the ability to manage these risks similar to other field operations undertaken by Woodside.

Negligible environmental impacts would arise from this option including loss of hard substrate as the wellheads currently provide a very small amount of benthic habitat, as well as generation of emissions and waste both from vessel activities and either permanent landfill disposal or scrapping of the wellheads. Localised disturbance to the seabed and water column from extracting the wellhead from the seabed was not considered a differentiator as there would also be localised disturbance to the seabed from long term degradation of the wellheads if left in-situ or partially removed. The use of a

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.						
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Page 19 of 72						
Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.						

MODU and support vessel for the activity would also introduce a loss of containment (LOC) risk as a result of a spill directly from the MODU/vessel.

Societal risks from removing the wellheads include a short-term displacement of other users in the field during the wellhead removal campaign, e.g. commercial vessels. This was also noted by the Western Australian Fishing Industry Council (WAFIC) during stakeholder consultation. This would have a limited impact and low magnitude due to short time and low level of fishing and shipping in the area.

There would be significant cost associated with completely recovering the wellheads, even if mobilisation of a MODU to the location were covered by a larger campaign. This cost is considered disproportionate to the benefit gained, given the additional risks introduced as described above for complete removal.

5.2 Option 1 – Leaving Wellheads in-situ

The comparative assessment resulted in no technical risks, significantly less health and safety risks (which were also lower in magnitude as a result of no in-field or onshore activities being required) and minimal environmental and societal impacts and risks for this option.

There were Moderate risks against legislation, codes and standards including, acceptability under the OPGGS Act as this is not the base case and will require acceptance by NOPSEMA that this option is acceptable. There is also a Moderate risk associated with the potential acceptance for a sea dumping permit by the DoEE under the Sea Dumping Act. The Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) support the complete removal of the wellheads and well casing option, unless it can be demonstrated that these structures are appropriately remediated to ensure the area is left in a condition that allows fishing operations of all types to occur in the future, and/or provides a significant benefit to aquatic resources. The wellheads are not expected to provide significant benefit to aquatic resources. The vishing operations are Slight and considered broadly acceptable when compared to the historic and current use of the area. Leaving the wellheads in-situ is not considered a potential long-term safety risk to commercial bottom trawling fishermen, largely because of the water depth, as even if a trawl vessels snagged a wellhead in this depth, it is not considered credible that it could capsize the vessel.

In summary, this option provides a better environmental outcome and lower safety risks, with one Slight risk regarding potential future benthic fishing.

5.3 Option 2 – Partial Wellhead Removal

5.3.1 Kelt-1, Noblige-2 and Remy-1

There are Moderate risks against legislation, codes and standards for partially removing the wellheads using a diamond wire saw. The option would require an accepted EP for this alterative option (as opposed to the base case which is complete removal), and potentially require acceptance for a sea dumping permit by the DoEE under the Sea Dumping Act.

A Low technical feasibility risk (i.e. not no risk) was identified for partial removal largely due to Woodside not having the same experience with this technology (industry experience risk). As with the Base Case, the activity would also have High health and safety risks, as a result of the general health and safety risks that would be identified in a safety case from this activity e.g. accommodation fires, occupational incidents, helicopter crashes, dropped objects, vessel structural integrity.

Similar environmental impacts would also arise from this option as for complete removal including localised disturbance to the seabed and water column impacts from extracting the wellhead from the seabed; and loss of hard substrate which currently provides a small amount of benthic habitat. Other environmental impacts would be the generation of emissions and waste both from vessel activities and permanent landfill disposal of the wellheads. The use of a vessel also introduces a LOC risk.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 20 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

Societal risks from partially removing the wellheads include a short-term impact of displacement of other users in the field during the wellhead removal campaign. This would have a limited impact and low magnitude due to short time and low level of fishing and shipping in the area. However, the partial removal would reduce the risk of long-term (in perpetuity) impacts to commercial fishing vessels from snagging, as the wellheads (and snagging risk) would be reduced from up to 4.37 m for Noblige-2 to 1 m after cutting with a diamond wire saw. This is not a significant benefit however as there is no known bottom trawling conducted at these depths in the area and the likelihood of future fishing in the area is unknown, but based on historical trends is likely to be low.

There is a Moderate cost associated with partially recovering the wellheads, even if mobilisation of an intervention vessel to the location were covered by a larger campaign. This cost is considered disproportionate to the benefit gained, given the additional risks introduced as described above for and given that Woodside has already attempted to fulfil its primary obligation to remove.

5.3.2 Martin-1

Attempting to completely or partially remove the Martin-1 wellhead (using a mechanical or diamond wire saw) has almost all of the same risks described above for partial or complete removal of the Kelt-1, Noblige-2 and Remy-1 wellheads. Only one difference in the risk rankings for Martin-1 well was identified. This was associated with an attempt to completely remove the wellhead (using a mechanical cutter), which has been assessed as having a Low technical feasibility risk (opposed to High for the other three wells) as using a mechanical cutter is an industry standard technology, which Woodside has executed successfully many times in the past. As this wellhead has not been attempted to be removed in the past, there is no elevated risk in using this technology for this wellhead. However, this was the only difference in risk rankings between this wellhead and the risks identified and discussed above for the Kelt-1, Noblige-2 and Remy-1 wellheads.

The comparative assessment showed that for each wellhead, leaving the infrastructure in-situ was the preferred option. This approach will deliver an equal or better environmental and safety outcome compared to complete removal, and complies with legislative and regulatory requirements. Well integrity does not change for any of the options considered.

5.4 Conclusion

The comparative assessment showed that for the Kelt-1, Noblige-2 and Remy-1 wellheads and Remy-1 well casing, leaving the infrastructure in-situ was the preferred option. This is primarily based on the depth of the wellheads, which are in very deep water (1,297 – 1,445 m). Feedback received during stakeholder consultation confirmed that wellheads would not impact current other users of the sea. Future impact on commercial bottom trawl fishing at this depth was also investigated and is considered highly unlikely. This is because bottom trawling has not operated at this water depth in this area in the past. The technical feasibility of complete removal of the wellheads and well casing is considered a Moderate risk of being unsuccessful primarily due to the failure during previous attempts to remove them. Based on these results, leaving these three wellheads and well casing in-situ is the preferred option.

Even when considered separately, the best permanent management option for the Martin-1 wellhead, which has not been attempted to be removed, is to leave it in-situ. This option is considered to have the best overall performance as it results in less risk to personnel, has the least environmental impacts when compared to the base case of complete removal, and has overall higher environmental benefits, even if the benefits are small.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.						
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Page 21 of 72						
Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.						

6. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND RISKS

6.1 Risk Identification and Evaluation

Woodside undertook an environmental risk assessment to identify the potential environmental impacts and risks associated with the Petroleum Activities Program, and the control measures to manage the identified environmental impacts and risks to as low as reasonably practicable (ALARP) and an acceptable level. This risk assessment and evaluation was undertaken using Woodside's Risk Management Framework.

Environmental impacts and risks include those directly and indirectly associated with the Petroleum Activities Program, and includes potential emergency and accidental events. Planned activities have the potential for inherent environmental impacts. An environmental risk is an unplanned event with the potential for impact (termed risk 'consequence').

Herein, potential impact from planned activities are termed 'impacts', and 'risks' are associated with unplanned events with the potential for impact (should the risk be realised), with such impact termed potential 'consequence'.

The key steps of Woodside's Risk Management Framework are shown in **Figure 6-1**. A summary of each step and how it is applied to the proposed Program is provided below.



Figure 6-1: Key steps in Woodside's Risk Management Framework

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 22 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

6.1.1 Establish the Context

The objective of a risk assessment is to assess identified risks and apply appropriate control measures to eliminate, control or mitigate the risk to ALARP and to determine if the risk is acceptable.

Hazard identification workshops aligned with NOPSEMA's Hazard Identification Guidance Note were undertaken by multidisciplinary teams made up of relevant personnel with sufficient breadth of knowledge, training and experience to reasonably assure that risks and associated impacts were identified and assessed.

6.1.2 **Risk Identification**

An Environmental Hazard Identification (ENVID) was undertaken by multidisciplinary teams consisting of relevant engineering and environmental personnel with sufficient breadth of knowledge, training and experience to reasonably assure that risks were identified and their potential environmental impacts assessed.

Impacts and risks were identified during the ENVID for both planned (routine and non-routine) activities and unplanned (accidents/incidents/emergency conditions) events.

Risk Analysis 6.1.3

Risk analysis further develops the understanding of a risk by defining the impacts and assessing appropriate controls. Risk analysis considered previous risk assessments for similar activities, review of relevant studies, review of past performance, external stakeholder consultation feedback and review of the existing environment.

The following key steps were undertaken for each identified risk during the risk assessment:

- identification of decision type in accordance with the decision support framework
- identification of appropriate control measures (preventative and mitigation) aligned with the decision type
- Assessment of the risk rating.

6.1.3.1 Decision Support Framework

To support the risk assessment process and Woodside's determination of acceptability, Woodside's HSE risk management procedures include the use of decision support framework based on principles set out in the Guidance on Risk Related Decision Making. This concept has been applied during the ENVID or equivalent preceding processes during historical design decisions to determine the level of supporting evidence that may be required to draw sound conclusions regarding risk level and whether the risk is acceptable and ALARP. This is to confirm:

- activities do not pose an unacceptable environmental risk
- appropriate focus is placed on activities where the risk is anticipated to be acceptable and demonstrated to be ALARP
- Appropriate effort is applied to the management of risks based on the uncertainty of the risk, the complexity and risk rating.

The framework provides appropriate tools, commensurate to the level of uncertainty or novelty associated with the risk/impact (referred to as the decision type A, B or C). The decision type is selected based on an informed discussion around the uncertainty of the risk/impact, and documented in ENVID worksheets.

This framework enables Woodside to appropriately understand a risk, determine if the risk or impact is acceptable and can be demonstrated to be ALARP.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Page 23 of 72

Decision Type A

Decision Type A are well understood and established practice, they generally consider recognised good industry practice which is often embodied in legislation, codes and standards and use professional judgment.

Decision Type B

Decision Type B typically involves greater uncertainty and complexity (and can include potential higher order impacts/risks). These risks may deviate from established practice or have some lifecycle implications and therefore require further engineering risk assessment in order to support the decision and ensure that the risk is ALARP. Engineering risk assessment tools may include:

- risk-based tools such as cost based analysis or modelling;
- consequence modelling;
- reliability analysis; and
- company values.

Decision Type C

Decision Type C typically has significant risks related to environmental performance. Such risks or impacts typically involve greater complexity and uncertainty, therefore requiring adoption of the precautionary approach. For risks this may result in significant environmental impact; significant project risk/exposure or may elicit negative stakeholder concerns. For these risks or impacts, in addition to Decision Type A and B tools, company and societal values need to be considered by undertaking broader internal and external stakeholder consultation as part of the assessment process.

6.1.3.2 Identification of Control Measures

Woodside applies a hierarchy of control measures when considering Good Practice and Professional Judgement. The hierarchy of control is applied in order of importance as follows; elimination, substitution, engineering control measures, administrative control measures and mitigation of consequences/impacts.

6.1.3.3 Risk Rating Process

The current risk rating process is undertaken to assign a level of risk to each impact measured in terms of consequence and likelihood. The assigned risk level is the current risk (i.e. risk with controls in place) and is therefore determined following the identification of the decision type and appropriate control measures.

The risk rating process considers the environmental impacts and where applicable, the reputational and brand, legal/compliance and social and cultural impacts of the risk. The risk ratings are assigned using the Woodside Risk Matrix (refer to **Figure 6-2**).

The risk rating process is performed using the following steps:

Select the Consequence Level

Determine the most credible impacts associated with the selected event assuming some controls (prevention and mitigation) have failed (refer to **Table 6-1**). Where more than one impact applies (i.e. environmental and legal/compliance), the consequence level for the highest severity impact is selected.

Table 6-1: Woodside Risk Matrix (environment and social and cultural) consequence descriptions

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by
any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.Controlled Ref No:A3000GF1400792523Revision: 0Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523Page 24 of 72

Environment	Social & Cultural	Consequence Level
Catastrophic, long-term impact (> 50 years) on highly valued ecosystems, species, habitat or physical or biological attributes	Catastrophic, long-term impact (>20 years) to a community, social infrastructure or highly valued areas/items of international cultural significance	А
Major, long term impact (10-50 years) on highly valued ecosystems, species, habitat or physical or biological attributes	Major, long-term impact (5-20 years) to a community, social infrastructure or highly valued areas/items of national cultural significance	В
Moderate, medium-term impact (2-10 years) on ecosystems, species, habitat or physical or biological attributes	Moderate, medium term Impact (2-5 years) to a community, social infrastructure or highly valued areas/items of national cultural significance	С
Minor, short-term impact (1-2 years) on species, habitat (but not affecting ecosystems function), physical or biological attributes	Minor, short-term impact (1-2 years) to a community or highly valued areas/items of cultural significance	D
Slight, short-term impact (<1 year) on species, habitat (but not affecting ecosystems function), physical or biological attributes	Slight, short-term impact (<1 year) to a community or areas/items of cultural significance	E
No lasting effect (<1 month). Localised impact not significant to environmental receptors	No lasting effect (<1 month). Localised impact not significant to areas/items of cultural significance	F

Select the Likelihood Level

Select the likelihood level from the description that best fits the chance of the selected consequence actually occurring, assuming reasonable effectiveness of the prevention and mitigation controls (refer to **Table 6-2**).

Table 6-2: Woodside risk matrix likelihood levels

	Likelihood Description						
Frequency	1 in 100,000 – 1,000,000 years	1 in 10,000 – 100,000 years	1 in 1,000 – 10,000 years	1 in 100 – 1,000 years	1 in 10-100 years	>1 in 10 years	
Experience	Remote: Unheard of in the industry	Highly Unlikely: Has occurred once or twice in the industry	Unlikely: Has occurred many times in the industry but not at Woodside	Possible: Has occurred once or twice in Woodside or may possibly occur	Likely: Has occurred frequently at Woodside or is likely to occur	Highly Likely: Has occurred frequently at the location or is expected to occur	
Likelihood Level	0	1	2	3	4	5	

Calculate the Risk Rating

A likelihood and risk rating is only applied to environmental risks using the Woodside Risk Matrix. This risk level is used as an input into the risk evaluation process and ultimately for the prioritisation of further risk reduction measures. Once each risk is treated to ALARP, the risk rating articulates the ALARP baseline risk as an output of the ENVID studies.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 25 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

	Likelihood Level							Risk
vel		0	1	2	3	4	5	Rating
onsequence Level	Α							Severe
nce	В							Very High
ant	C							High
sec	D							Moderate
No.	E							
0	F							Low

Figure 6-2: Woodside risk matrix: risk level

The ENVID (undertaken in accordance with the methodology described above) identified four sources of environmental risk, comprising three planned, which are all assessed as having a low current risk rating, and one unplanned sources of risk, which is assessed as having a low current risk rating.

The risk analysis and evaluation for the Petroleum Activities Program indicate that all of the current environmental risks and impacts associated with the activity are reduced to ALARP and are of an acceptable level (refer to **Figure 6-2**).

6.1.4 Impact and Risk evaluation

Environmental risks, as opposed to safety risks, cover a wider range of issues, differing species, persistence, reversibility, resilience, cumulative effects and variability in severity. The degree of environmental risk and the corresponding threshold for whether a risk/impact has been adapted to include principles of ecological sustainability (given as an objective in the Environment Regulations and defined in the EPBC Act), the Precautionary Principle and the corresponding environmental risk threshold decision-making principles used to determine acceptability.

6.1.4.1 Demonstration of ALARP

Descriptions have been provided below (**Table 6-3**) to articulate how Woodside demonstrates different risks, impacts and Decision Types identified within the EP are ALARP.

Table 6-3: Summary of Woodside's criteria for ALARP demonstration

Risk	Impact (Consequence)	Decision Type					
Low and Moderate	Negligible, Slight or Minor (D, E or F)	Α					
Woodside demonstrates these Risks, Im	pacts and Decision Types are reduced to	ALARP:					
 if controls identified meet legislative requirements, industry codes and standards, applicable company requirements and industry guidelines. 							
	k reduction (beyond employing opportuni rossly disproportionate to the benefit gain						
High, Very High or Severe	Moderate and above (A, B, or C)	B and C					
demonstrated using good industry practic Legislative requirements, applicable con	npany requirements and industry codes a	Ύ,					
Societal concerns are accounted for; an	d						

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 26 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

The alternative control measures are grossly disproportionate to the benefit gained.

6.1.4.2 Demonstration of Acceptability

Descriptions have been provided below (**Table 6-4**) to articulate how Woodside demonstrates how different risks, impacts and Decision Types identified within the EP are Acceptable.

Table 6-4: Summary of Woodside's criteria for Acceptability

Risk	Impact (Consequence)	Decision Type		
Low and Moderate	Negligible, Slight or Minor (D, E or F)	Α		
Woodside demonstrates these Risks, Impacts and Decision Types are 'Broadly Acceptable', if they meet legislative requirements, industry codes and standards, applicable company requirements and industry guidelines.				
High, Very High or Severe	Moderate and above (A, B, or C)	B and C		
Woodside demonstrates these higher order Risks, Impacts and Decision are 'Acceptable if ALARP' can be demonstrated using good industry practice and risk based analysis, if legislative requirements are met and societal concerns are accounted for and the alternative control measures are grossly disproportionate to the benefit gained. In undertaking this process for moderate and high current risks, Woodside evaluates the following criteria:				
Principles of Ecological Sustainable Development (ESD) as defined under the EPBC Act;				
 Internal context - the proposed controls and consequence/ risk level are consistent with Woodside policies, procedures and standards; 				
 External context – consideration of the environment consequence 				
 stakeholder acceptability and 	stakeholder acceptability and			
other requirements – the propo	• other requirements - the proposed controls and consequence/ risk level are consistent with national and			

international industry standards, laws and policies.

Additionally, Very High and Severe risks require 'Escalated Investigation' and mitigation to reduce the risk to a lower and more acceptable level. If after further investigation the risk remains in the Very High or Severe category, the risk requires appropriate business engagement in accordance with Woodside's Risk Management Procedure to accept the risk. This includes due consideration of regulatory requirements.

6.2 Potential Environment Risks not included within the Scope of the Environment Plan

The ENVID identified a number of sources of environmental risk / impact that were assessed as not being applicable (not credible) within or outside the Wellhead Operational Area as a result of the Petroleum Activities Program. These sources of environmental risk / impact were determined to not form part of the EP and are described in the following sections for information only. These are described in **Table 6-5** below.

Source of Risk	Justification for not being applicable (not credible)		
Vessel based impacts and risks	Discharges (e.g. sewage, grey water), acoustic emissions, atmospheric emissions and spill risks (e.g. deck and bunkering spills) associated with vessel based operations were assessed as not credible as no vessel operations are proposed for this Petroleum Activities Program.		
Helicopter operations	Interference with other aerial operations and acoustic emissions associated with helicopter operations were assessed as not credible as no helicopter operations are proposed for this Petroleum Activities Program.		

This document is protected by copyright. No part of any process (electronic or otherwise) without the sp	,		ed in any form by	
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523	Revision: 0	Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523	Page 27 of 72	
Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.				

Displacement of commercial fishing	No specific tourism occurs in the Wellhead Operational Area (Section 4.4), occasionally charter boats or private motor vessels may pass through the area. As the wellheads are over 1000 m below the sea surface they will not impact charter boats or private motor vessels passing through the area. Consultation with stakeholders confirmed there were no concerns from recreational fishing stakeholders with the proposal to leave the wellheads
Displacement of tourism operations	and casing in-situ permanently. Shipping density data provided by AMSA confirms that low density shipping traffic does intersect the Wellhead Operational Area (Section 4.4). In addition, AMSA has advised that the presence of wellheads will not pose a risk to shipping in the future due to their low profile relative to the prevailing water depths. No shipping fairways intersect the Wellhead Operational Area.
Displacement of defence activities	No known defence areas overlap the Wellhead Operational Area (Section 4.4). As the wellheads are located in water depths >1,000 m, impacts to defence activities now or in the future as a result of the physical presence of the wellheads was assessed as not credible.
Planned or unplanned discharge of well fluid (Remy- 1, Kelt-1 and Noblige-2)	The top sections of Remy-1, Kelt-1 and Noblige-2 including the A-annulus, comprises of seawater. There may be trace amounts of water-based drilling fluid additives (guar gum and bentonite) in these wells. Guar gum and bentonite are non-toxic and are classified as 'E' category fluids under OCNS (Section 3.4).
	If present, the guar gum and bentonite will have settled to the bottom of the well section (between 664 m and 2,434 m below the seabed). Given the small diameter of each of the well casings and the depths below the seabed at which the cement plugs are installed, the risk of planned or unplanned discharge of residual amounts of non-toxic components to the environment from Remy-1, Kelt-1 and Noblige-2 was assessed as not credible.
	WBM from the Martin-1 well were not flushed prior to abandonment and are contained within the well, above the top cement plug. The main chemical components of WBM (potassium chloride, barite and bentonite clay) are all listed by OSPAR as Posing Little Or No Risk to the Environment (PLONOR) based on results for toxicity, biodegradation and bioaccumulation. In addition, WBM biodegrade after <1 year. Therefore, there is no environmental toxicity risk.
Impacts to the marine environment from WBM in Martin-1	The residual WBM constituents that have not broken down over time are heavier than water and would have settled to the bottom of the well to sit on top of the top cement plug. The top cement plug in Martin-1 well is over 2000 m below the sea bed. The well casings are 13 3/8" or narrower. The only environmental impact residual constituents of WBM may present is possible physical effects to the environment, such as smothering. However, any fine residual components that could escape from the bottom of a narrow well casing of this depth would not be in sufficient quantities to smother, block light or otherwise impact on the environment. Therefore there is no credible risk derived from the WBM left in the permanently plugged and abandoned wells.
Unplanned anchoring	Risks associated with unplanned anchoring were assessed as not being applicable as the water depth in the Wellhead Operational Area is too deep

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 28 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

	for anchoring. There are also no vessel operations proposed for this Petroleum Activities Program.
Invasive marine species (IMS)	IMS management (i.e. hull fouling and ballast water) was assessed as not being applicable as there are no vessel operations proposed for this Petroleum Activities Program.
Shallow/near-shore activities	Risks associated with shallow / near-shore activities such as anchoring and vessel grounding were assessed as not being applicable as there are no vessel operations proposed for this Petroleum Activities Program.
	The Kelt-1, Remy-1 and Noblige-2 Suspension Plans were submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Petroleum (Submerged Lands) (Management of Well Operations) Regulations 2004 and were accepted by the relevant regulator. The executed isolation of the reservoir section reflects the approved plans.
Loss of well integrity	Well abandonment procedures and reservoir isolations performed for Martin-1 well was submitted to NOPSEMA as Martin-1 Well Abandonment Assessment in 2017. The assessment demonstrated the adequacy of the downhole barriers such that the wells have been classed as permanently abandoned. As the wells have been abandoned with permanent downhole barriers in place, the loss of well integrity is not considered credible. As there is no credible hydrocarbon risk, no Oil Pollution Emergency Plan has been developed to support the EP.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 29 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

7. ENVIRONMENTAL RISK AND IMPACTS SUMMARY

Table 7-1 presents a summary of the sources of impact/risk, analysis and evaluation for the Petroleum Activities program.

The risks identified during the ENVID (including decision type, current risk level, acceptability of risk and tools used in the demonstration of acceptability and ALARP) have been divided into two broad categories:

- planned (routine and non-routine) activities; and
- unplanned events (accidents, incidents or emergency situations).

A detailed description of credible environmental risks and potential impacts together with a summary of control measures have been presented in **Appendix B**.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision: 0
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 30 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

Table 7-1: Environmental Risk and Impacts Register Summary

				Current Risk Rating				
Aspect	EP Section	Source of Impact/Risk	Key Potential Environmental Impacts (Refer to relevant EP section for details)	Consequence	Potential Consequence level of impact ²	Likelihood	Current Risk Rating	Acceptability of Impact/Risk
Planned Activities (F	Planned Activities (Routine and Non-routine)							
Physical presence- disturbance to benthic habitats	6.6.1 (EP Summary Appendix A)	Interruption to seabed movement of sediments as a consequence of wellhead presence.	Disturbance to benthic habitats from scouring/accretion of sediments around wellhead. Presence of hard substrate allowing creation of a new habitat.	F	Environment – No lasting effect (<1 month). Localised impact not significant to environmental receptors.	-	-	Broadly acceptable
Non-routine discharges	6.6.2 (EP Summary Appendix A)	Corrosion/breakdown of wellhead over time resulting in release of trace amounts of metals.	Localised and not significant effects to sediment and water quality and marine biota in offshore waters.	F	Environment – No lasting effect (<1 month). Localised impact not significant to environmental receptors.	-	-	Broadly acceptable
Unplanned Activities (Accidents / Incidents)								
Physical presence resulting in accidental damage to trawling equipment	6.7.1 (EP Summary Appendix A)	Wellhead left in-situ resulting in accidental damage to trawling equipment.	Isolated social impact potentially resulting in accidental damage to trawling equipment.	F	Environment – No lasting effect (<1 month). Localised impact not significant to environmental receptors.	1	L	Broadly acceptable

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Page 31 of 72

8. ONGOING MONITORING OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Petroleum Activities Program will be managed in compliance with the WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads EP accepted by NOPSEMA under the Environment Regulations, other relevant environmental legislation and Woodside's Management System (e.g. Woodside Environment Policy).

The objective of the EP is to identify, mitigate and manage potentially adverse environmental impacts associated with the Petroleum Activities Program, during both planned and unplanned operations, to ALARP and an acceptable level.

For each environmental aspect (risk), and associated environmental impacts (identified and assessed in the Environmental Risk Assessment of the EP) a specific environmental performance outcome, environmental performance standards and measurement criteria have been developed. The performance standards are control measures (available in **Appendix A**) that will be implemented (consistent with the performance standards) to achieve the environmental performance outcomes. The specific measurement criteria provide the evidence base to demonstrate that the performance standards (control measures) and outcomes are achieved.

The implementation strategy detailed in the WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads EP identifies the roles/responsibilities and training/competency requirements for all personnel (Woodside and its contractors) in relation to implementing controls, managing non-conformance, emergency response and meeting monitoring, auditing, and reporting requirements during the activity.

The tools and systems collect, as a minimum, the data (evidence) referred to in the measurement criteria. The collection of this data (and assessment against the measurement criteria) forms part of the permanent record of compliance maintained by Woodside and the basis for demonstrating that the environmental performance outcomes and standards are met, which is then summarised in a series of routine reporting documents.

Monitoring of environmental performance is undertaken as part of the following:

 Environmental Performance Report will be submitted to NOPSEMA to assess and confirm compliance with the accepted environmental performance objectives, standards and measurement criteria outlined in the EP

Incidents will be reported using an Incident and Hazard Report Form, which includes details of the event, immediate action taken to control the situation, and corrective actions to prevent reoccurrence. An internal computerised database is used for the recording and reporting of these incidents. Incident corrective actions are monitored to ensure they are closed out in a timely manner.

8.1 Environment Plan Revisions and Management of Change

The activity will end upon acceptance of the EP by NOPSEMA (Section **3.4**). As such, no management of change or revision will be required for this Petroleum Activities Program.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision 0:
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 32 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

9. CONSULTATION

In support of the WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads EP, Woodside conducted a stakeholder assessment and engaged with relevant stakeholders to inform decision-making and planning for this petroleum activity in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 11A and 14(9) of the Environment Regulations.

Woodside conducted an assessment to identify relevant stakeholders, based on the location of the WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads and potential environmental and social impacts. A consultation fact sheet was sent to all stakeholders identified through the stakeholder assessment process prior to lodgement of the WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads EP with NOPSEMA for assessment and acceptance. Woodside provided information about the Petroleum Activities Program to the relevant stakeholders listed in Table 8-1. Woodside considers relevant stakeholders for routine operations as those that undertake normal business or lifestyle activities in the vicinity of the existing Petroleum Activities Program (or their nominated representative) or have a State or Commonwealth regulatory role.

Organisation	Relevance
Department of Industry, Innovation and Science	Department of relevant Commonwealth Minister
Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety (formerly <i>Department of Mines and</i> <i>Petroleum</i>)	Department of relevant State Minister
Australian Maritime Safety Authority	Maritime safety
Australian Hydrographic Service	Maritime safety
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (formerly <i>Department of</i> <i>Fisheries (Western Australia)</i>)	Fisheries management
Commonwealth Fisheries Association	Commercial fisheries – Commonwealth
Western Australian Fishing Industry Council	Commercial fisheries – State
Department of Defence	Defence estate management
Department of Transport	Hydrocarbon spill preparedness (Western Australian waters)
Department of the Environment and Energy	Responsible for Sea Dumping Act implementation

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Revision 0:

10. TITLEHOLDER NOMINATED LIAISON PERSON

For further information about this activity, please contact: Corporate Affairs Adviser Woodside Energy Ltd Woodside Plaza, 240 St Georges Terrace, Perth WA 6000 E: <u>Feedback@woodside.com.au</u> Toll free: 1800 442 977

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by
any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.Controlled Ref No:A3000GF1400792523Revision 0:Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523Page 34 of 72

11. ABBREVIATIONS

Term	Description / Definition
AFMA	Australian Fisheries Management Authority
AHS	Australian Hydrographic Service
ALARP	As Low As Reasonably Practicable
AMOSC	Australian Marine Oil Spill Centre
AMSA	Australian Maritime Safety Authority
APPEA	Australian Petroleum Production & Exploration Association
BIA	Biologically Important Area
DoEE	Department of Environment and Energy
DPIRD	Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development
ENVID	Environmental hazard Identification
EP	Environment Plan
EPBC Act	Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act, 1999 (Cth).
ESD	Ecologically Sustainable Development
KEF	Key Ecological Feature
LAT	Lowest Astronomical Tide
MNES	Matters of National Environmental Significance
NOPSEMA	National Offshore Petroleum Safety and Environmental Management Authority
NWMR	North-west Marine Region
NWP	Northwest Province
OCNS	Offshore Chemical Notification Scheme
OPGGS Act	Offshore Petroleum and Greenhouse Gas Storage Act, 2006 (Cth)
PLONOR	Pose Little or No. Risk to the Environment
WA	Western Australia
WAFIC	Western Australian Fishing Industry Council
WBM	Water Based Mud
WOMP	Well Operations Management Plan
Woodside	Woodside Energy Ltd (note references to Woodside may also be references to Woodside Petroleum Ltd or its applicable subsidiaries).

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by
any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.Controlled Ref No:A3000GF1400792523Revision 0:Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523Page 35 of 72

12. REFERENCES

The following includes a list of literature cited within the full Environment Plan and used to conduct the risk assessment for the activities described within the Environment Plan; only a subset of this list is cited within this EP Summary document.

- Abascal, F.J., Quintans, M., Ramos-Cartelle, A., Mejuto, J., 2011. Movements and environmental preferences of the shortfin mako, *Isurus oxyrinchus*, in the southeastern Pacific Ocean. Marine biology 158, 1175–1184.
- Allen, G.R., Swainston, R., Western Australian Museum, 1988. The Marine Fishes of North-Western Australia: A Field Guide for Anglers and Divers. Perth, Western Australia.
- Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics and Sciences (ABARES), 2017. Fishery status reports 2017. Department of Agriculture and Water Resources, Canberra.
- Australian Fisheries Management Authority (AFMA), 2010. Annual status report: southern bluefin tuna fishery 2010. Australian Fisheries Management Authority, Canberra.
- Australian Fisheries Management Authority (AFMA), 2017. Purse siene. Available from: http://www.afma.gov.au/portfolio-item/purse-seine/ (Accessed 20.12.17)
- Baker, C., Potter, A., Tran, M. and Heap, A.D., 2008. Geomorphology and Sedimentology of the Northwest Marine Region of Australia. Geoscience Australia, Record 2008/07. Geoscience Australia, Canberra. 220pp.
- Bamford, M., Watkins, D., Bancroft, W., Tischler, G., Wahl, J., 2008. Migratory shorebirds of the East Asian-Australasian flyway: population estimates and internationally important sites. Wetlands International -Oceania, Canberra.
- Bannister J.L., Hedley S.L., 2001. Southern Hemisphere Group IV humpback whales: their status from recent aerial survey. Memoirs of the Queensland Museum. 47:587-598.
- Bannister, J., Kemper, C.M., Warneke, R.M., 1996. The action plan for Australian cetaceans. Australian Nature Conservation Agency, Canberra.
- Batteen, M.L., Rutherford, M.J., Bayler, E.J., 1992. A numerical study of wind-and thermal-forcing effects on the ocean circulation off Western Australia. Journal of Physical Oceanography 22, 1406–1433.
- Bennett, M., Bansemer, C., 2004. Investigations of Grey Nurse Shark in Qld to fulfil actions under the Recovery Plan for Grey Nurse Shark in Aus. regarding impact of divers, and establishment of a photographic database to improve knowledge of migratory movements and estimation of bycatch. Available from: https://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/82871d2d-3ad5-4238-b42fc064834b5da6/files/grey-nurse-shark-project.pdf (Accessed 1.12.17).
- Brewer, D., Lyne, V., Skewes, T., Rothlisberg, P., 2007. Trophic systems of the North-west Marine Region. CSIRO Marine and Atmospheric Research, Cleveland.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by
any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.Controlled Ref No:A3000GF1400792523Revision 0:Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523Page 36 of 72

- Bruce, B.D., 2008. The biology and ecology of the white shark, *Carcharodon carcharias*, in: Camhi, M.D., Pikitch, E.K., Babcock, E.A. (Eds.), Sharks of the Open Ocean: Biology, Fisheries and Conservation. Blackwell Publishing Limited, Oxford, pp. 69–81.
- Bruce, B.D., 2013. Shark futures: a synthesis of available data on mako and porbeagle sharks in Australiasian waters. Current and future directions (Tactical Research Fund No. FRDC 2011/045). Fisheries Research and Development Corporation, Canberra.
- Bruce, B.D., Stevens, J.D., Malcolm, H., 2006. Movements and swimming behaviour of white sharks (*Carcharodon carcharias*) in Australian waters. Marine Biology 150, 161–172.
- Bryce, M., Bryce, C., Hosie, A., Jones, D., 2015. Woodside deep sea Phase 1. Western Australian Museum, Perth.
- Buchman, MF, 2008. NOAA Screening Quick Reference Tables. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Seattle, USA.
- Bureau of Meteorology (BoM), 2017. Summary statistics for Barrow Island [WWW Document]. Climate statistics for Australian locations. URL http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/averages/tables/cw_005058.shtml (accessed 1.12.17).
- Bureau of Meteorology (BoM), n.d. a. Tropical Cyclones Affecting Onslow [WWW Document]. Tropical Cyclones Affecting Onslow. URL http://www.bom.gov.au/cyclone/history/wa/onslow.shtml (accessed 1.12.17).
- Bureau of Meteorology (BoM), n.d. b. Southern Hemisphere Tropical Cyclone Data Portal [WWW Document]. Southern Hemisphere Tropical Cyclone Data Portal. URL http://www.bom.gov.au/cyclone/history/tracks/index.shtml (accessed 1.12.17).
- Campana, S.E., Marks, L., Joyce, W., 2005. The biology and fishery of shortfin mako sharks (*Isurus oxyrinchus*) in Atlantic Canadian waters. Fisheries Research 73, 341–352. doi:10.1016/j.fishres.2005.01.009
- Cavanagh R, D., Kyne P.M., Fowler S.L., Musick J.A., Bennett, M.B. eds., 2003. The Conservation Status of Australian Chondrichthyans: Report of the IUCN Shark Specialist Group Australia and Oceania Regional Red List Workshop. Brisbane, Queensland: The University of Queensland, School of Biomedical Sciences.
- Clarke, J., Milligan, R.J., Bailey, D.M., Neat, F.C., 2015. A scientific basis for regulating deep-sea fishing by depth, Journal of Current Biology 25, 25967. (https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0960982215011422/pdfft?md5=88eff13cf78722c 7848d6c279867aed8&pid=1-s2.0-S0960982215011422-main.pdf
- Chevron Australia Pty Ltd, 2015. Gorgon gas development and Jansz feed gas pipeline: Long-term marine turtle management plan (No. G1- NT-PLNX0000296). Chevron Australia Pty Ltd, Perth.
- Chidlow, J., Gaughan, D., McAuley, R., 2006. Identification of Western Australian grey nurse shark aggregation sites: final report to the Australian Government, Department of Environment and Heritage (Fisheries Research Report No. 155). Department of Fisheries, Perth.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision 0:

Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

- Commonwealth of Australia, 2015a. Conservation Management Plan for the Blue Whale A Recovery Plan under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. Canberra, ACT: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/publications/recovery/blue-whaleconservation-management-plan. In effect under the EPBC Act from 03-Oct-2015.
- Commonwealth of Australia, 2015b. Sawfish and River Sharks Multispecies Recovery Plan. Canberra, ACT: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/publications/recovery/sawfish-river-sharksmultispecies-recovery-plan. In effect under the EPBC Act from 07-Nov-2015.
- Commonwealth of Australia, 2015c. Wildlife Conservation Plan for Migratory Shorebirds. Canberra: Commonwealth of Australia.
- Condie, S., Andrewartha, J., Mansbridge, J., Waring, J., 2006. Modelling circulation and connectivity on Australia's North West (Technical Report No. 6), North West Shelf Joint Environmental Management Study. CSIRO Marine and Atmospheric Research, Perth.
- Cummings, D.O., Lee, R.W., Simpson, S.J., Booth, D., Pile, A.J. and Holmes, S.P., 2011. Resource partitioning amongst co-occurring decapods on wellheads from Australia's North–West shelf. An analysis of carbon and nitrogen stable isotopes. Journal of Experimental Marine Biology and Ecology Journal of Experimental Marine Biological Ecology 409. . 10.1016/j.jembe.2011.08.021.
- D'Anastasi, B., Simpfendorfer, C., van Herwerden, L., 2013. *Anoxypristis cuspidata*. The IUCN Red List of Threatened Species 2013: e.T39389A18620409. http://dx.doi.org/10.2305/IUCN.UK.2013-1.RLTS.T39389A18620409.en. Downloaded on 01 December 2017.
- Davis, T.L., Jenkins, G.P., Young, J.W., 1990. Diel patterns of vertical distribution in larvae of southern bluefin Thunnus maccoyii, and other tuna in the East Indian Ocean. Marine Ecology Progress Series 59, 63–74.
- Department of Conservation and Land Management (CALM), 2005. Management Plan for the Ningaloo Marine Park and Muiron Islands Marine Management Area 2005 - 2015 (Management Plan No. 52). Department of Conservation and Land Management, Perth.
- Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC), 2007. Management plan for the Montebello/Barrow Islands Marine Conservation Reserves. Marine Parks and Reserves Authority, Perth.
- Department of Fisheries (DoF), 2016. Department of Fisheries Annual Report to Parliament 2015/2016. Department of Fisheries, Perth, Western Australia.
- Department of Fisheries (DoF), 2017. Department of Fisheries Annual Report to Parliament 2016/2017. Department of Fisheries, Perth, Western Australia.
- Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities (DSEWPaC), 2012a. Marine bioregional plan for the North-west Marine Region: prepared under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities, Canberra.
- Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities (DSEWPaC), 2012b. Species group report card - marine reptiles. Supporting the marine bioregional plan for the North-

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision 0:
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 38 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.
west Marine Region prepared under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities, Canberra.

- Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities (DSEWPaC), 2013. Recovery Plan for the White Shark (*Carcharodon carcharias*). Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/publications/recovery/white-shark.html. In effect under the EPBC Act from 06-Aug-2013 as Carcharodon carcharias.
- Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities(DSEWPaC), 2012c. Species group report card - seabirds and migratory shorebirds. Supporting the marine bioregional plan for the North-west Marine Region prepared under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities, Canberra.
- Department of the Environment (DoE), 2013a. *Physeter macrocephalus* Sperm Whale [WWW Document]. Species Profile and Threats Database. URL http://www.environment.gov.au/cgibin/sprat/public/publicspecies.pl?taxon_id=59 (accessed 1.12.17).
- Department of the Environment (DoE), 2013b. Orcinus orca Killer Whale, Orca [WWW Document]. Species Profile and Threats Database. URL http://www.environment.gov.au/cgibin/sprat/public/publicspecies.pl?taxon_id=46 (accessed 1.12.17).
- Department of the Environment (DoE), 2014. Recovery Plan for the Grey Nurse Shark (*Carcharias taurus*). Canberra, ACT: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/resource/recovery-plan-grey-nurse-shark-carcharias-taurus. In effect under the EPBC Act from 14-Aug-2014
- Department of the Environment (DoE), 2015. *Dermochelys coriacea* Leatherback Turtle, Leathery Turtle, Luth [WWW Document]. Species Profile and Threats Database. URL http://www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/sprat/public/publicspecies.pl?taxon_id=1768 (accessed 1.12.17).
- Department of the Environment (DoE), 2016. *Balaenoptera borealis* [WWW Document]. Species Profile and Threats Database, Department of the Environment, Canberra.
- Department of the Environment and Energy (DoEE), 2017a. Recovery Plan for Marine Turtles in Australia. Australian Government, Canberra. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/marine/publications/recovery-plan-marine-turtles-australia-2017. In effect under the EPBC Act from 03-Jun-2017. Ceased to be in effect under the EPBC Act from 01-Oct-2027.
- Department of the Environment and Energy (DoEE), 2017b. Australian National Shipwreck Database [WWW Document]. Australian National Shipwreck Database. URL http://www.environment.gov.au/heritage/historic-shipwrecks/australian-national-shipwreck-database (accessed 1.12.17).
- Department of the Environment and Energy (DoEE), n.d. b. Montebello Commonwealth Marine Reserve -Overview [WWW Document]. Montebello Commonwealth Marine Reserve. URL https://www.environment.gov.au/topics/marine/marine-reserves/north-west/montebello (accessed 1.12.17).

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by
any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.Controlled Ref No:A3000GF1400792523Revision 0:Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523Page 39 of 72

- Department of the Environment and Heritage (DEH), 2005a. Blue, fin and sei whale recovery plan 2005 2010 (Recovery Plan). Department of the Environment and Heritage, Canberra.
- Department of the Environment and Heritage (DEH), 2005b. NON-CURRENT Humpback Whale Recovery Plan 2005 - 2010. Department of the Environment and Heritage. Canberra, Commonwealth of Australia. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/publications/recovery/mnovaeangliae/index.html. In effect under the EPBC Act from 18-May-2005. Ceased to be in effect under the EPBC Act from 01-Oct-2015.
- Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts (DEWHA), 2008a. The north-west marine bioregional plan: bioregional profile. Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts, Canberra.
- Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts (DEWHA), 2008b. Approved Conservation Advice for Green Sawfish. Canberra: Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/68442conservation-advice.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 07-Mar-2008
- Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts (DEWHA), 2009. Threat abatement plan for the impacts of marine debris on vertebrate marine life. Canberra: Commonwealth of Australia. Available from: <u>http://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/d945695b-a3b9-4010-91b4-914efcdbae2f/files/marine-debris-threat-abatement-plan.pdf</u>
- Department of Industry, Innovation and Science (DIIS), 2018. Offshore Petroleum Decommissioning Guideline. Effective 17 January 2018. Available from: http://www.nopta.gov.au/_documents/guidelines/decommissioning-guideline.pdf
- Dodge KL, Galuardi B, Miller TJ, Lutcavage ME, 2014. Leatherback Turtle Movements, Dive Behavior, and Habitat Characteristics in Ecoregions of the Northwest Atlantic Ocean. PLoS ONE 9. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0091726
- Double, M., Gales, N., Jenner, K., Jenner, M., 2010. Satellite tracking of south-bound female humpback whales in the Kimberley region of Western Australia. Australian Marine Mammal Centre, Hobart.
- Double, M., Jenner, K., Jenner, M., Ball, I., Childerhouse, S., Loverick, S., Gales, N., 2012a. Satellite tracking of northbound humpback whales (*Megaptera novaeangliae*) off Western Australia. Australian Marine Mammal Centre, Hobart.
- Double, M., Jenner, K., Jenner, M.-N., Ball, I., Laverick, S., Gales, N., 2012. Satellite tracking of pygmy blue whales (*Balaenoptera musculus brevicauda*) off Western Australia. Australian Marine Mammal Centre, Hobart.
- Double, M.C., Andrews-Goff, V., Jenner, K.C.S., Jenner, M.-N., Laverick, S.M., Branch, T.A., Gales, N.J., 2014. Migratory movements of pygmy blue whales (*Balaenoptera musculus brevicauda*) between Australia and Indonesia as revealed by satellite telemetry. PloS one 9, e93578.
- Environment Australia, 2002. Ningaloo marine park (Commonwealth waters) management plan. Environment Australia, Canberra.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision 0: Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

Page 40 of 72

- Environment Australia, 2003. Recovery plan for marine turtles in Australia. Department of the Environment and Heritage, Canberra.
- Falkner, I., Whiteway, T., Przeslawski, R., Heap, A.D., 2009. Review of Ten Key Ecological Features (KEFs) in the Northwest Marine Region: a report to the Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts by Geoscience Australia, Geoscience Australia Record. Geoscience Australia, Canberra.
- Fletcher, W., Friedman, K., Weir, V., McCrea, J., Clark, R., 2006. Pearl oyster fishery (ESD Report Series No. 5). Department of Fisheries, Perth.
- Fletcher, W., Santoro, K., 2011. State of the fisheries and aquatic resources report 2010/11. Department of Fisheries, Perth.
- Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO), 2017. Fishing Techniques: Tuna Purse Seining [WWW Document]. Fisheries and Aquaculture Department. URL http://www.fao.org/fishery/fishtech/40/en (accessed 29.11.17).
- Ford, J., Ellis, G., Matkin, D., Balcomb, K., Briggs, D., Morton, A., 2005. Killer Whale Attacks on Minke Whales: Prey Capture and Antipredator Tactics. Marine Mammal Science 24, 603–618.
- Fowler, A. and Booth, D.J., 2012. 'Evidence of sustained populations of a small reef fish on artificial structures. Does depth affect production on artificial reefs?', Journal Of Fish Biology, vol. 80, no. 3, pp. 613-629.
- Geoscience Australia, 2006. Commonwealth fisheries 2006 dataset (GeoCat No. 64771). Geoscience Australia, Canberra.
- Godfrey, J., Ridgway, K., 1985. The large-scale environment of the poleward-flowing Leeuwin Current, Western Australia: longshore steric height gradients, wind stresses and geostrophic flow. Journal of Physical Oceanography 15, 481–495.
- Gratwicke B and Speight M.R. 2005. The relationship between fish species richness, abundance and habitat complexity in a range of shallow tropical marine habitats, Journal of Fish Biology 66: 650-667.
- Grimwood, M.J. & Dixon, E. 1997. Assessment of risks posed by List II metals to Sensitive Marine Areas (SMAs) and adequacy of existing environmental quality standards (EQSs) for SMA protection. Report to English Nature

Impact Assessment Procedure (Woodside Doc. No. WM0000PG10996761)

- Hanson, C.E., Waite, A.M., Thompson, P.A., Pattiaratchi, C.B., 2007. Phytoplankton community structure and nitrogen nutrition in Leeuwin Current and coastal waters off the Gascoyne region of Western Australia. Deep Sea Research Part II: Topical Studies in Oceanography 54, 902–924.
- Hart, A., Crowe, K., 2015. Specimen shell managed fishery status report, in: Fletcher, W., Santoro, K. (Eds.), Status Reports of the Fisheries and Aquatic Resources of Western Australia 2014/15: The State of the Fisheries. Department of Fisheries, Perth, 306–308.
- Hart, A., Murphy, D. and Jones, R., 2017a. North Coast Pearl Oyster Resource Status Report 2016 in: Fletcher W.J., Mumme M.D. and Webster F.J. (eds)., 2017. Status Reports of the Fisheries and

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision 0:
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 41 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

Aquatic Resources of Western Australia 2015/16: The State of the Fisheries. Department of Fisheries, Western Australia.

- Hart, A., Murphy, D., Jones, R., 2015. Pearl oyster managed fishery status report, in: Fletcher, W., Santoro, K. (Eds.), Status Report of the Fisheries and Aquatic Resources of Western Australia 2014/2015: The State of the Fisheries. Department of Fisheries, Perth, 211–216.
- Hart, A., Strain, L., Hesp, A., Fisher, E., Webster, F., Brand-Gardner, S. and Walters, S. 2017b. Marine Stewardship Council Full Assessment Report Western Australian Abalone Managed Fishery. Department of Fisheries, Western Australia. 288pp.
- Hart, A., Travaille, K.L., Jones, R., Brand-Gardner, S., Webster, F., Irving, A. and Harry, A.V., 2016. Western Australian Marine Stewardship Council Report Series No. 5: Western Australian Silver-lipped Pearl Oyster (*Pinctada maxima*) Industry. Department of Fisheries, Western Australia. 316pp.
- Heyward, A., Rees, M., Wolff, C., Smith, L., 2001. Exploration of biodiversity data report on benthic habitats and biological collections from an initial benthic survey conducted in the region of WA-271-P. Australian Institute of Marine Science, Perth.
- Holloway, P., 1983. Tides on the Australian north-west shelf. Marine and Freshwater Research 34, 213–230.
- Holloway, P., Nye, H., 1985. Leeuwin Current and wind distributions on the southern part of the Australian North West Shelf between January 1982 and July 1983. Marine and Freshwater Research 36, 123– 137.
- Holloway, P.E., Chatwin, P.G., Craig, P., 2001. Internal tide observations from the Australian north west shelf in summer 1995. Journal of Physical Oceanography 31, 1182–1199.
- Houghton, J., Doyle, T., Davenport, J., Wilson, R, Hays, G. 2008. The role of infrequent and extraordinary deep dives in leatherback turtles (*Dermochelys coriacea*). Journal of Experimental Biology 2566–2575. doi:10.1242/jeb.020065
- How, J., Nardi, K., 2015. West coast deep sea crustacean managed fishery status report, in: Fletcher, W., Santoro, K. (Eds.), Status Reports of the Fisheries and Aquatic Resources of Western Australia 2014/15: The State of the Fisheries. Department of Fisheries, Perth, pp. 130–134.
- How, J.R., Webster, F.J., Travaille, K.L., Nardi, K., Harry, A.V., 2015. Western Australian Marine Stewardship Council Report Series No. 4: West Coast Deep Sea Crustacean Managed Fishery. Addendum issued October 2017. Department of Fisheries, Western Australia, 172pp.
- James, N.P., Bone, Y., Kyser, T.K., Dix, G.R., Collins, L.B., 2004. The importance of changing oceanography in controlling late Quaternary carbonate sedimentation on a high-energy, tropical, oceanic ramp: north-western Australia. Sedimentology 51, 1179–1205. doi:10.1111/j.1365-3091.2004.00666.x
- Jenner, C., Jenner, M., McCauley, R., 2010. A description of the megafauna distribution and abundance in the SW Pilbara using aerial and acoustic surveys. Centre for Whale Research (WA) Inc., Fremantle.
- Jenner, K., Jenner, M., McCabe, K., 2001. Geographical and temporal movements of humpback whales in Western Australian waters. APPEA Journal 41, 692–707.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision 0:
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 42 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

- Jenner, K.C.S. and Jenner, M.N. 2009a. Near-shore vessel surveys in the SW Kimberley region during the humpback whale southern migration, 2008. Report produced for Woodside Energy Limited. 29 pp.
- Jenner, KCS, Jenner, MN, Pirzl, R, 2009b. A Study of Cetacean Distribution and Oceanography in the Scott Reef/Browse Basin Development Areas During the Austral Winter of 2008. Report produced for Woodside Energy Limited.
- Langstreth, J., Williams, A., Stewart, J., Marton, N., Lewis, P., Saunders, T., 2016. Spanish Mackerel. Fisheries Research and Development Corporation (FRDC).
- Last, P.R., Lyne, V., Yearsley, G., Gledhill, D., Gomon, M., Rees, T., White, W., 2005. Validation of national demersal fish datasets for the regionalisation of the Australian continental slope and outer shelf (>40m depth). National Oceans Office, Hobart.
- LeProvost, Dames and Moore, 2000. Ningaloo Marine Park (Commonwealth Waters), Literature Review. Prepared for Environment Australia, LeProvost Dames and Moore, Perth, WA.
- Limpus, C., Chatto, R., 2004. Marine turtles, in: Description of Key Species Groups in the Northern Planning Area. National Oceans Office, Hobart, 113–136.
- Limpus, C.J., 2007. A biological review of Australian marine turtles. 5. Flatback turtle, *Natator depressus* (Garman), A biological review of Australian marine turtles. Queensland Government Environmental Protection Agency, Brisbane.
- Limpus, C.J., 2008a. A biological review of Australian marine turtles. 2. Green turtle, *Chelonia mydas* (Linnaeus), A biological review of Australian marine turtles. Queensland Government Environmental Protection Agency, Brisbane.
- Limpus, C.J., 2008b. A biological review of Australian marine turtles. 1. Loggerhead turtle, *Caretta caretta* (Linnaeus), A biological review of Australian marine turtles. Queensland Government Environmental Protection Agency, Brisbane.
- Limpus, C.J., 2009a. A biological review of Australian marine turtles. 6. Leatherback turtle, *Dermochelys coriacea* (Vandelli), A biological review of Australian marine turtles. Queensland Government Environmental Protection Agency, Brisbane.
- Limpus, C.J., 2009b. A biological review of Australian marine turtles. 3. Hawksbill turtle, *Eretmochelys imbricata* (Linnaeus), A biological review of Australian marine turtles. Queensland Government Environmental Protection Agency, Brisbane.
- Mackie, M., Buckworth, R.C., Gaughan, D.J., 2003. Stock assessment of narrow-barred Spanish mackerel (*Scomberomorus commerson*) in Western Australia (FRDC Report No. 1999/151). Department of Fisheries, Perth.
- Mackie, M., Nardi, A., Lewis, P., Newman, S., 2007. Small pelagic fishes of the north-west marine region. Department of Fisheries, Perth.
- Marine Parks and Reserves Authority (MPRA). 2005. Management Plan for the Ningaloo Marine Park and Muiron Islands Marine Management Area 2005 2015. Marine Parks and Reserves Authority, Kensington.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by
any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.Controlled Ref No:A3000GF1400792523Revision 0:Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523Page 43 of 72

- Marshall, A., Bennett, M., Kodja, G., Hinojosa-Alvarez, S., Galvan-Magana, F., Harding, M., Stevens, G., Kashiwaga, T., 2011a. *Manta birostris* (Chevron Manta Ray, Giant Manta Ray, Oceanic Manta Ray, Pacific Manta Ray, Pelagic Manta Ray) [WWW Document]. The IUCN Red List of Threatened Species. URL http://www.iucnredlist.org/details/198921/0 (accessed 1.12.17).
- Marshall, A., Kashiwagi, T., Bennett, M.B., Deakos, M., Stevens, G., McGregor, F., Clark, T., Ishihara, H., Sato, K., 2011b. *Manta alfredi*. The IUCN Red List of Threatened Species 2011: e.T195459A8969079. http://dx.doi.org/10.2305/IUCN.UK.2011-2.RLTS.T195459A8969079.en (accessed 1.12.17).
- Matsuura, H., Sugimoto, T., Nakai, M., Tsuji, S., 1997. Oceanographic conditions near the spawning ground of southern bluefin tuna; northeastern Indian Ocean. Journal of Oceanography 53, 421–434.
- McCauley, R., Duncan, A., 2011. Sea noise logger deployment, Wheatstone and Onslow, April 2009 to November 2010 (Technical Report No. R2011-23). Centre for Marine Science and Technology, Curtin University of Technology, Perth.
- McCauley, R., Jenner, C., 2001. The underwater acoustic environment in the vicinity of Vincent and Enfield petroleum leases, North West Cape, Exmouth WA (Report No. R2001-22). Centre for Marine Science and Technology, Curtin University of Technology, Perth.
- McCauley, R., Jenner, C., 2010. Migratory patterns and estimated population size of pygmy blue whales (*Balaenoptera musculus brevicauda*) traversing the Western Australian coast based on passive acoustics (International Whaling Commission Report No. SC/62/SH26). International Whaling Commission.
- McCauley, R., Salgado Kent, C., 2008. Pile driving underwater noise assessment, proposed Bell Bay pulp mill wharf development (CMST Report No. 2008–27). Centre for Marine Science and Technology, Curtin University of Technology, Perth.
- McCauley, R.D., 2011. Woodside Kimberley sea noise logger program, Septemer 2006 to June 2009: whales, fish and man made noise (Report No. R2010–50_3). Curtin University, Perth.
- McCauley, R.D., 2009. Sea Noise Logger Deployment Scott Reef: 2006-2008 Whales, Fish and Seismic Survey. Report produced for Woodside Energy Limited 88.
- McLean, D., Taylor, M., Bond, T., Partridge, J. and Langlois, T., 2017. Fish and habitats of wellheads on the north-west shelf of Western Australia, Draft report for Woodside Energy on research findings, The University of Western Australia, Perth, Australia.
- Meekan, M. and Radford, B. 2010. Migration Patterns of Whale Sharks: A summary of 15 satellite tag tracks from 2005 to 2008, Report to the Browse Joint Venture Partners, Australian Institute of Marine Science.
- Meeting Minutes from NOPSEMA regarding Woodside's planned management of suspended and abandoned wellheads, 20 February 2018 (DRIMS# 1400682128).
- Melchers, R.E.,2005. Effect of Immersion Depth on Marine Corrosion of Mild Steele. Corrosion Science Section NACE International.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision 0:

Revision 0: Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

- Meyers, G., Bailey, R., Worby, A., 1995. Geostrophic transport of Indonesian throughflow. Deep Sea Research Part I: Oceanographic Research Papers 42, 1163–1174.
- Miller, J.D., 1997. Reproduction in Sea Turtles, in: The Biology of Sea Turtles. CRC Press, Boca Raton, pp. 51–80.

Mobil Australia Resources Company Pty. Ltd. 2011. Jansz – Io Drilling Environment Plan.

- Molony, B., Lai, E., Jones, R., 2015. Mackerel managed fishery report: Statistics only, in: Fletcher, W., Santoro, K. (Eds.), Status Reports of the Fisheries and Aquatic Resources of Western Australia 2014/2015: The State of the Fisheries. Department of Fisheries, Perth, pp. 207–210.
- Morrice, M.G., Gill, P.C., Hughes, J., Levings, A.H., 2004. Summary of aerial surveys conducted for the Santos Ltd EPP32 seismic survey, 2 13 December 2003. Deakin University, Warnambool.
- National Oceans Office, Geoscience Australia, 2005. 2005 National Marine Bioregionalisation of Australia. Geoscience Australia, Canberra.
- Neff, J.M., 2005. Composition, environmental fates, and biological effects of water bsaed drilling muds and cuttings discharged to the marine environment: A sysnthesis and annotated bibliography (Prepared for: No. Petroleum Environmental Research Fund (PERF), American Petroleum Institute). Batelle, Duxbury.
- Newman, S., Molony, B., Bruce, C., Syers, C. and Kalinowski, P., 2017a. Statewide: Statewide Marine Aquarium Fish and Hermit Crab Resources Status Report 2016. Department of Fisheries.
- Newman, S., Wakefield, C., Skepper, C., Boddington, D., Blay, N., Jones, R., Dobson, P., 2015. North coast demersal fisheries status report, in: Fletcher, W., Santoro, K. (Eds.), Status Reports of the Fisheries and Aquatic Resources of Western Australia 2014/15: The State of the Fisheries. Department of Fisheries, Perth, pp. 189–206.
- Newman, S., Wakefield, C., Skepper, C., Boddington, D., Jones, R. and Dobson, P., 2017b. North Coast Bioregion: North Coast Demersal Resource Status Report 2016. Department of Fisheries.
- Oil and Gas UK, 2014. Guidance on risk related decision making (Issue No. 2). United Kingdom Offshore Operators Association, London.
- Omori, M & Hamner, WM, 1982. Patchy Distribution of Zooplankton: Behaviour, Population Assessment and Sampling Problems. Marine Biology 72.
- Patterson, H., Bath, A., 2016. Skipjack tuna fishery, in: Patterson, H., Noriega, R., Georgeson, L., Stobutzki, I., Curtotti, R. (Eds.), Fisheries Status Reports 2016. Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry, Canberra, 382–390.
- Patterson, H., Bath, A., 2017. Skipjack tuna fishery, in: Patterson, H., Noriega R., Georgeson, L., Larcombe, J., Curtotti, R., 2017. Fishery status reports 2017, Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics and Sciences, Canberra, 385-393.
- Patterson, H., Nicol, S., Curtotti, R., 2017. Southern bluefin tuna fishery, in: Patterson, H., Noriega R., Georgeson, L., Larcombe, J., Curtotti, R., 2017. Fishery status reports 2017, Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics and Sciences, Canberra, 394-405.

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision 0:
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 45 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

- Pearce, A., Buchan, S., Chiffings, T., D'Adamo, N., Fandry, C., Fearns, P., Mills, D., Phillips, R., Simpson, C., 2003. A review of the oceanography of the Dampier Archipelago, Western Australia, in: Wells, F., Walker, D., Jones, D. (Eds.), The Marine Flora and Fauna of Dampier, Western Australia. Western Australian Museum, Perth, 13–50.
- Pendoley, K.L., 2005. Sea turtles and the environmental management of industrial activities in north west Australia (Doctor of Philosophy). Murdoch University, Perth.
- Potemra, J.T., Hautala, S.L., Sprintall, J., 2003. Vertical structure of Indonesian throughflow in a large-scale model. Deep Sea Research Part II: Topical Studies in Oceanography 50, 2143–2161. doi:10.1016/S0967-0645(03)00050-X
- Pradella, N., Fowler, A.M., Booth, D.J., Macreadie, P.I., 2014. Fish assemblages associated with oil industry structures on the continental shelf of north-western Australia: FISH ASSEMBLAGES ON OIL INDUSTRY STRUCTURES. Journal of Fish Biology 84, 247–255. doi:10.1111/jfb.12274
- Prieto, R., Janiger, D., Silva, M.A., Waring, G.T., Gonçalves, J.M., 2012. The forgotten whale: a bibliometric analysis and literature review of the North Atlantic sei whale *Balaenoptera borealis*. Mammal Review 42, 235–272. doi:10.1111/j.1365-2907.2011.00195.x
- Rosser, N., Gilmour, J., 2008. New insights into patterns of coral spawning on Western Australian reefs. Coral Reefs 27, 345–349.
- RPS. 2010. Marine Megafauna Report. Browse marine megafauna study 2009. RPS Planning and Environment Pty Ltd, Perth.
- RPS. 2011. Sediment quality surveys March-April 2011, Greater Western Flank Marine Environmental Baseline Studies, RPS Planning and Environment Pty Ltd, Perth, WA. A study commissioned by Woodside Energy Ltd.
- Sainsbury, K.J., Kailola, P.J. and Leyland, G.G. 1985. Continental reef fishes of Northern and North-Western Australia, Clousten and Hall, Canberra, ACT.
- Salgado-Kent, C., Jenner, C., Jenner, M., Bouchet, P., Rexstad, E., 2012. Southern Hemisphere breeding stock D humpback whale population estimates from North West Cape, Western Australia. Journal of Cetacean Research and Management 12, 29–38.
- Schianetz, K., Jones, T., Kavanagh, L., Walker, P.A., Lockington, D., Wood, D., 2009. The practicalities of a Learning Tourism Destination: a case study of the Ningaloo Coast. International Journal of Tourism Research 11, 567–581. doi:10.1002/jtr.729
- Sepulveda, C., Kohin, S., Chan, C., Vetter, R., Graham, J., 2004. Movement patterns, depth preferences, and stomach temperatures of free-swimming juvenile mako sharks, *Isurus oxyrinchus*, in the Southern California Bight. Marine Biology 145, 191–199.
- SGS Economics & Planning, 2012. Economic development opportunities for the Gascoyne region associated with resource sector investment and expansion. Gascoyne Development Commission, Fortitude Valley.
- Simpson, C.J., Cary, J.L., Masini, R.J., 1993. Destruction of corals and other reef animals by coral spawn slicks on Ningaloo Reef, Western Australia. Coral Reefs 12, 185–191. doi:10.1007/BF00334478

 This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

 Controlled Ref No:
 A3000GF1400792523
 Revision 0:
 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523
 Page 46 of 72

 Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.

- Sinclair Knight Merz (SKM), 2006. Marine Survey for Proposed Angel Pipeline Route. Report for Woodside Energy Ltd, 26pp.
- Sinclair Knight Merz (SKM), 2007. Northwest Shelf Cumulative Environmental Impact Study Offshore Marine Cumulative Assessment. Report prepared for Woodside Energy Pty Ltd by Sinclair Knight Merz, Perth, WA.
- Sleeman, J.C., Meekan, M.G., Fitzpatrick, B., Steinberg, C., Ancel, R., Bradshaw, C., 2010. Oceanographic and atmospheric phenomena influence the abundance of whale sharks at Ningaloo Reef, Western Australia. Journal of Experimental Marine Biology and Ecology 382, 77-81.
- Smiley, B.D., 2006. The intentional scuttling of surplus and derelict vessels: Some effects on marine biota and their habitats in British Columbia waters, 2002. Canadian Science Advisory Secretariat Research Document 2006/059.
- Smith, K., Quinn, A., Holtz, M., 2015. West coast nearshore and estuarine finfish resoruces status report, in: Fletcher, W., Santoro, K. (Eds.), Status Report of the Fisheries and Aquatic Resources of Western Australia 2014/2015: The State of the Fisheries. Department of Fisheries, Perth, pp. 65-81.
- Sporer, E., Kangas, M., Wilkin, S., Koefoed, I., Cavalli, P. and Pickles, L., 2017. North Coast Bioregion: North Coast Prawn Resource Status Report 2016. Department of Fisheries.
- Stevens, J., Pillans, R., Salini, J., 2005. Conservation assessment of Glyphis sp. A (speartooth shark), Glyphis sp. C (northern river shark), Pristis microdon (freshwater sawfish) and Pristis zijsron (green sawfish). CSIRO Marine Research, Hobart.
- Stevens, J.D., Bradford, R.W., West, G.J., 2010. Satellite tagging of blue sharks (Prionace glauca) and other pelagic sharks off eastern Australia: depth behaviour, temperature experience and movements. Marine biology 157, 575-591.
- Stewart, J., Fowler, A., Andrews, J., Lyle, J., Smith, K and Emery, T., 2016. Australian Salmons. Fisheries Research and Development Corporation (FRDC).
- Thiele, D., Gill P.C., 1999. Cetacean observations during a winter voyage into Antarctic sea ice south of Australia. Antarctic Science 11, 48-53.
- Threatened Species Scientific Committee (TSSC), 2008. Commonwealth Conservation Advice on Dermochelys coriacea. Canberra: Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/1768conservation-advice.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 08-Jan-2009.
- Threatened Species Scientific Committee (TSSC), 2015a. Conservation Advice Balaenoptera borealis sei Canberra: Department Environment. whale. of the Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/34-conservation-advice-01102015.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 01-Oct-2015.
- Threatened Species Scientific Committee (TSSC), 2015b. Approved Conservation Advice for Balaenoptera physalus (fin whale). Canberra: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/37-conservation-advice-01102015.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 01-Oct-2015.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Revision 0:

- Threatened Species Scientific Committee (TSSC), 2015c. Approved Conservation Advice for *Megaptera novaeangliae* (humpback whale). Canberra: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/38-conservation-advice-10102015.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 01-Oct-2015.
- Threatened Species Scientific Committee (TSSC), 2015d. Approved Conservation Advice for *Numenius madagascariensis* (Eastern Curlew). Canberra: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/847-conservation-advice.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 26-May-2015.
- Threatened Species Scientific Committee (TSSC), 2015e. Approved Conservation Advice for *Rhincodon typus* (whale shark). Canberra: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/66680-conservation-advice-01102015.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 01-Oct-2015.
- Threatened Species Scientific Committee (TSSC), 2016. Approved Conservation Advice for *Calidris canutus* (Red knot). Canberra: Department of the Environment. Available from: http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/threatened/species/pubs/855-conservation-advice-05052016.pdf. In effect under the EPBC Act from 05-May-2016.
- URS, 2010. Wheatstone Project: Deepwater Habitat Survey. Report Prepared for Chevron. 5 May 2010. Technical Appendix N9. Draft Environmental Impact Statement/Environmental Review and Management Program for the Proposed Wheatstone Project. Technical Appendices N3 to N10. July 2010. Downloaded from: https://www.chevronaustralia.com/docs/default-source/default-documentlibrary/wheatstonedraft-eis_ermp-technical-appendices-n3-to-n10693FDBF02D22.pdf?sfvrsn=0.
- Waayers, D., Smith, L., Malseed, B., 2011. Inter-nesting distribution of green turtles (*Chelonia mydas*) and flatback turtles (*Natator depressus*) at the Lacepede Islands, Western Australia. Journal of the Royal Society of Western Australia 94, 359–364.

WA-404-P Wellheads Options Screening Assessment (DRIMS# 1400678843)

Well abandonment levies (Woodside Doc. No. 1400642790)

- Western Australian Museum, n.d. Maritime Archaeology shipwreck database. Available online from http://museum.wa.gov.au/maritime-archaeology-db/wrecks/ (Accessed 1.12.17).
- Whittock, P., Pendoley, K., Hamann, M., 2014. Inter-nesting distribution of flatback turtles *Natator depressus* and industrial development in Western Australia. Endangered Species Research 26, 25–38. doi:10.3354/esr00628
- Williams, A., Patterson, H., Bath, A., 2017. Western tuna and billfish fishery, in: Patterson, H., Noriega R., Georgeson, L., Larcombe, J., Curtotti, R., 2017. Fishery status reports 2017, Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics and Sciences, Canberra, 406-423.
- Williams, A; Dunstan, P; Althaus, F; Barker, B; McEnnulty, F; Gowlett-Holmes, K; Keith, G, 2010. Characterising the Seabed Biodiversity and Habitats of the Deep Continental Shelf and Upper Slope off the Kimberley coast, NW Australia,. Report produced for Woodside Energy Ltd, CSIRO.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Controlled Ref No:	A3000GF1	1400792523	Revision	0:	Native fi	le DRIMS No: 1400792523

- Wilson, S., Carleton, J., Meekan, M., 2003. Spatial and temporal patterns in the distribution and abundance of macrozooplankton on the southern North West Shelf, Western Australia. Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science 56, 897–908.
- Wilson, S., Polovina, J., Stewart, B., Meekan, M., 2006. Movements of whale sharks (*Rhincodon typus*) tagged at Ningaloo Reef, Western Australia. Marine Biology 148, 1157–1166.
- Wilson, S.G., J.G. Taylor & A.F. Pearce, 2001. The seasonal aggregation of whale sharks at Ningaloo Reef, Western Australia: currents, migrations and the El Niño/Southern Oscillation. Environmental Biology of Fishes. 61:1-11
- Wilson, S.K., Depczynski, M., Fisher, R., Holmes, T.H., O'Leary, R.A., Tinkler, P., 2010. Habitat associations of juvenile fish at Ningaloo Reef, Western Australia: The importance of coral and algae. PLoS ONE 5, e15185. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0015185
- Woodhams, J., Bath, A., 2017. North west slope trawl fishery, in: Patterson, H., Noriega R., Georgeson, L., Larcombe, J., Curtotti, R., 2017. Fishery status reports 2017, Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics and Sciences, Canberra, 85-91.

Woodside Energy Limited, 2014. Browse FLNG Development Draft Environmental Impact Statement.

- Woodside Energy, 2002. WA-271-P Draft Environmental Impact Statement (EPBC Referral 2001/257). Woodside Energy Ltd. Perth, Western Australia.
- Zobel, B., 1984. Foraminiferal age of phosphorite nodules from the Chatham Rise (SO-17 Cruise). Geologisches Jahrbuch, Reihe D, 99–100.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by
any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.Controlled Ref No:A3000GF1400792523Revision 0:Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523Page 49 of 72

APPENDIX A: ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND RISKS

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Revision 0:

	Impacts Evaluation Summary													
	Environmental Value Potentially Impacted					Evaluation								
Source of Risk / Impact	Soil and Groundwater	Marine Sediment	Water Quality	Air Quality (incl Odour)	Ecosystems/ Habitat	Species	Socio-Economic	Decision Type	Consequence	Likelihood	Current Risk Rating	ALARP Tools	Acceptability	Outcome
Disturbance to seabed and benthic habitat from wellhead remaining in-situ permanently		x			x			A	F	-	-	LC S GP PJ	Broadly acceptable	N/A
		Desc	riptio	n of s	Sourc	e of l	Impac	t						

Physical Presence: Disturbance to Seabed and Benthic Habitat

The physical presence of the wellheads remaining in-situ permanently has the potential to result in disturbance to the seabed and benthic habitats in the following ways:

- Altering hydrodynamic conditions around the wellhead resulting scouring and accretion;
- Introduction of hard substrate resulting in the creation of a new habitat.

Each wellhead is less than 1 m in diameter and up to 4.4 m high and made from mild steel (AISI 4130).

Impact Assessment

Scouring and Accretion Around Wellheads

The presence of the wellheads on the seafloor can interact with the hydrodynamics of the Wellhead Operational Area potentially resulting in disturbance to the seabed (scouring and accretion) which may impact on associated benthic habitats.

A number of studies on the effects of sediment movements associated with anthropogenic structures on the seabed, such as shipwrecks and artificial reefs, indicate impacts to be limited to within 10 m of the structure (Smiley 2006; Lewis and Pagano, 2016). Sediment around the wellheads is largely comprised of fine grained sand and silts. However, as the wellheads are all located in >1,000 m water depth, seabed currents at this depth are unlikely to result in the movement of large amounts of sediments, therefore limiting the extent of scouring/accretion.

Localised scouring and accretion has the potential to alter associated benthic communities. Given that benthic habitat within the Wellhead Operational Area primarily consists of soft unconsolidated sediments, and is considered to be of relatively low environmental sensitivity and has the ability to recover, no significant impacts to benthic communities are expected.

Although Remy-1 overlaps the Exmouth Plateau KEF, and the Operational Area of Noblige-2 also intersects the KEF, the area they overlap is a relatively small percentage (<1%) and is also a flat section of the plateau feature and therefore there are not expected to be any significant impacts from localised scouring and accretion on the function of the KEF.

Habitat Creation

The seabed in the vicinity of these the wellheads is dominated by soft, unconsolidated sediments inhabited by infauna and sparsely distributed epifauna. The physical presence of the wellhead potentially provides an area for the settlement of marine organisms requiring hard substrate such as bryozoans (Van der Stap et al., 2016, Pradella et al., 2014). Whilst shallow water environments with hard substrate have been found to have a high diversity of marine life (Heyward et al., 2001), abundance is found to be generally low in deeper waters (Bryce at al., 2015). The effects of habitat creation are likely to be limited to the immediate vicinity of the wellhead structures and will ultimately decline as these structures degrade (Fowler and Booth, 2012). Therefore, the effects of habitat creation are expected to be localised.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Controlled Ref No:	A3000GF1400792523	Revision 0:	Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523	Page 51 of 72
--------------------	-------------------	-------------	----------------------------------	---------------

Summary of Potential Impacts to environmental values(s)

The wellheads remaining in-situ permanently is expected to have a localised, not significant impact to environmental receptors. No further impacts to benthic habitats and/or sediment quality are likely.

Summary of Control Measures

Woodside will engage with DoEE on their obligations under the Sea Dumping Act. •

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision 0: Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

	Impacts Evaluation Summary													
	Environmental Value Potentially Impacted					Evaluation								
Source of Risk / Impact	Soil and Groundwater	Marine Sediment	Water Quality	Air Quality (incl Odour)	Ecosystems/ Habitat	Species	Socio-Economic	Decision Type	Consequence	Likelihood	Current Risk Rating	ALARP Tools	Acceptability	Outcome
Corrosion of wellheads resulting in the non-routine discharge of trace amounts of metals to the marine environment.		x	X		x			A	F	-	-	LC S GP	Broadly acceptable	N/A
		Desc	riptio	n of s	Sourc	e of I	mpac	t						

Non-routine Discharges to the Marine Environment

As the wellheads will remain in-situ permanently, over time, the wellheads will corrode (either internal or external corrosion). This could result in the release of contaminants to marine sediments, effecting benthic habitats and water quality in the surrounding water column.

Release of Contaminants

Each wellhead is less than 1 m in diameter and up to 4.4 m high and made from mild steel (AISI 4130). The casing on Remy-1 is made of carbon steel grade X56 (equivalent to the German Class E 385, 7). Both mild steel and carbon steel is mainly comprised of iron (~98%) and also contains small amounts of carbon, manganese, chromium, silicon, and phosphorus.

Impact Assessment

Release of Contaminants

Corrosion of the wellheads and casing over time could result in the release of trace amount of metals (e.g. iron and manganese) to the water column and surrounding sediments. Due to the robustness of the materials involved and the deep water location of the wellheads, corrosion is likely to be a relatively slow process approximately 0.2mm/year (Melchers, 2005).

Iron, the main constituent (~98%) of the wellheads and casing material, is not considered a significant contaminant in the marine environment and is only toxic to marine organisms at extremely high concentrations (Grimwood and Dixon, 1997). As the other constituents represent less than 1% of the wellhead composition, impacts to marine sediments, organisms are water quality as a result of their release are highly unlikely.

Given the low toxicity of iron, the slow release rate and rapid dilution in the open ocean environment, it is likely that any impacts to marine sediments, benthic habitats, and water quality will be largely localised and not significant.

Summary of Potential Impacts to environmental values(s)

It is considered that the discharge of trace amounts of metals may result in localised impacts to marine sediments, benthic habitats and water quality and is not considered to be significant.

Summary of Control Measures

• Woodside will engage with DoEE on their obligations under the Sea Dumping Act.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Revision: 0

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Impacts Evaluation Summary														
	Env	viron		al Val	ue Po ed	otenti	ally			E١	valua	tion		
Source of Risk / Impact	Soil and Groundwater	Marine Sediment	Water Quality	Air Quality (incl Odour)	Ecosystems/ Habitat	Species	Socio-Economic	Decision Type	Consequence	Likelihood	Current Risk Rating	ALARP Tools	Acceptability	Outcome
Wellheads left in-situ resulting in accidental damage to trawling equipment							x	В	F	1	L	LC S GP PJ SV	Broadly acceptable	EPO 1 & 2
		Desc	riptio	n of s	Sourc	e of l	mpac	ct						
Description of Source of Impact The physical presence of the wellheads and casing, that extend up to approximately 4.4 m above the seabed, has the potential in the future to displace fishers or result in future accidental damage to trawling equipment within the Wellhead Operational Area. Two of the wellheads (Kelt-1 and Noblige-2) are currently marked on nautical charts, while the remaining two (Remy-1 and Martin-1) are not. There is no exclusion zone/Petroleum Safety Zone, for any activities, within the Wellhead Operational Area.														
			Impa	act A	ssess	men	t							
Currently, four Commonwealth and four State fisheries overlap the Wellhead Operational Area, however, none of these fisheries currently operate at depths consistent with the Wellhead Operational Area (1,297 to 1,446 m). Of these eight fisheries, only the North West Slope Trawl Fishery employs fishing methods which could be credibly impacted by the presence of the wellheads on the seabed (i.e. trawl fishing). The Status of Fisheries Report (ABARES, 2017) for the North West Slope Trawl illustrates that there has been an overall decline in catch and effort for the fishery since it began, as well as reduced participation, with only one or two vessels operating since 2008-09. This is attributed largely to low net economic returns. Evidence suggests the fishery is unlikely to be expanding into the Wellhead Operational Area, but rather into areas affected by the recent boundary amendments as a result of the Western Australia Offshore Constitutional Settlement arrangement (ABARES, 2017; Woodhams and Bath, 2017)														
Typical trawl fishing depths in Aus of trawl fishing gear being damage trawl fishing effort being expanded to the region of the Wellhead Op north of Barrow and Montebello Is and south-east of the Wellhead Op	jed fro I by m eratior Iands,	om sna lore th nal Are arour	agging an twi ea. Cu nd Rov	on o ce the urrentl wley S	ne of curre y, effo Shoals	the want main the main the the main the	ellhead ximum he fish	ds lef typic tery is	t in-sit al dep s focus	u is, t oth ran sed in	herefo ige, ar Comi	ore, de nd shif nonwe	epende ted sp ealth v	ent on atially vaters
and south-east of the Wellhead Operational Area (ABARES, 2017). Although there may be a possibility that trawl fishing depths might increase in the future, research has suggested that there should potentially be a maximum allowable limit for trawl fishing of 600 m (Clarke et al, 2015; Shrope, 2015). Clarke et al. (2015) justify this depth limit based on evidence of increased bycatch rates between 200 m and 1,300 m, leading to a higher potential for impact on biodiversity, as well as the increased vulnerability to exploitation and unsustainable fishing and decreased commercial value of deep sea species. Clarke et al. (2015) found the highest bycatch proportions from trawl fishing at depths consistent with the Wellhead Operational Area (between 1,297 m and 1,446 m).														
In some international countries, fisheries have already adopted a mandatory ban on trawling below 800 m (European Commission, 2016). Although there is debate on whether this limitation is sufficient (Clarke et al., 2015; Shrope, 2015), 800 m is still well above depths consistent with the Wellhead Operational Area. Currently, trawl fishing has been excluded from Australian Marine Parks, potentially suggesting there may be support for this type of management strategy in the future. Should fisheries management in Australia adopt a maximum trawl depth, the risk to trawl fishing gear in the future would no longer be considered credible.														
The current risk of trawl gear being future, this risk is not expected to														
This document is protected by copyright any process (electronic or otherwise) w												tored ir	n any fo	orm by
Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792	523		Re	evision	: 0	Na	tive file	DRIM	S No: 1	140079	2523		Page 5	54 of 72
Uncontrolled w	Uncontrolled when printed. Refer to electronic version for most up to date information.													

Physical Presence: Accidental Future Impacts to Commercial Fishing

WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads Environment Plan Summary

trawl fishing is introduced. In the unlikely event of a trawl fishing net snagging on one of the wellheads subject to this EP, the impacts to the fishery will be localised and considered not significant.

Consultation with stakeholders as part of the Comparative Assessment and for the EP confirmed there was one concern raised from commercial fishing stakeholders (DPIRD) with the proposal to leave the wellheads and casing insitu permanently. However, based on the above, this risk is considered highly unlikely, and with the mitigation controls in place, is considered broadly acceptable.

Summary of Potential Impacts to environmental values(s)

Given the depth, adopted controls, the risk of the physical presence of the wellheads left in-situ resulting in future displacement or accidental damage to fishing equipment in the future is considered low (Isolated social impact).

Summary of Control Measures

- Woodside will engage with DoEE on their obligations under the Sea Dumping Act; •
- Woodside will notify relevant State and Commonwealth fisheries that the wellheads will remain in-situ; and
- Woodside will notify AHS of wellhead locations to enable AHS to update maritime charts.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK AND WOODSIDE'S RESPONSE

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved. Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523 Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523 Page 56 of 72

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Department of Industry, Innovation and Science	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety (formerly Department of Mines and Petroleum)	Email with fact sheet Date: 23 March 2018 The stakeholder raised no claims or objections. Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission. Claims or objections.		Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.	
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 5 April 2018 Feedback summary: The Department acknowledged that Woodside will prepare an Environment Plan for submission to NOPSEMA to cover the proposed decommissioning of four wellheads in exploration permit WA-404-P The Department also sought clarification on two points, namely: • Whether the three wells aside from Martin-1 had been permanently plugged as the status was unclear • Whether Woodside had identified any potential environmental risks or impacts associated with leaving the wellheads and	 Woodside responded by confirming that all four wells have been permanently plugged and abandoned, and that potential environmental risks or impacts associated with leaving the wellheads and casing from Remy-1 in-situ include: Localised seabed and water column contamination from rust as the wellheads and drill casing corrodes over time (the casing and wellheads are made from steel); Localised sediment movement changes (e.g. burying or scouring around the wellheads 	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0

Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
		casing from Remy-1 in-situ.	and drill casing by water currents due to the presence of the well casing).	
	Email	Date: 12 April 2018 Feedback summary: DMIRS acknowledged all wells have been permanently plugged and abandoned. DMIRS did not have comments to provide on the proposed activity but requested that Woodside advises once the preferred decommissioning option is selected.	Woodside confirmed that it would advise DMIRS once the preferred decommissioning option has been selected.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Australian Maritime Safety Authority	Email with fact sheet	Date: 26 March 2018 Feedback summary: AMSA advised that from a safety of navigation perspective, it has no preferred decommissioning method. AMSA requests that regardless of final method approved by NOPSEMA, that any remaining infrastructure that sits proud of the seafloor is notified to the Australian Hydrographic Office for incorporation into nautical charts.	Woodside confirmed that it will notify the Australian Hydrographic Office of any such remaining infrastructure that sits proud of the seafloor once the final decommissioning option has been selected and approved by NOPSEMA.	Response/Action: Woodside to liaise with AHS to ensure wellheads are marked on marine charts.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: AMSA responded to Woodside noting that the scope of the WA- 404-P Wellheads EP now includes the detail on the 234 m of well casing, and that previous advice from AMSA dated 26 March remains extant.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Australian Hydrographic	Email with fact sheet	Date: 26 March 2018 Feedback summary:	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action:

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Service		Automatic response acknowledging receipt of email.		Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: Automatic response acknowledging receipt of email.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (formerly Department of Fisheries (Western Australia))	Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 6 April 2018 Feedback summary: The Department advised that it generally encourages titleholders to ensure abandoned sites are stripped of unused infrastructure, however understands that in some cases the removal of all infrastructure may not result in a net environmental benefit and trusts the Regulator to evaluate and regulate such decommissioning proposals. With respect to the wellheads that are in waters deeper than 200m, the Department deems the risk of a significant impact on WA aquatic resources and fisheries associated with the proposed well abandonments to be low. However, it is not supportive of leaving a 200m+ well casing on the seabed, in principle, without careful	Woodside acknowledged the feedback from the Department, including the response that the Department would not be supportive of leaving a 200m+ well casing on the seabed, in principle, without careful consideration of removal options. Woodside advised that the feedback will be considered as part of the comparative assessment on the decommissioning options, and further consultation will be undertaken once the outcome of this assessment is finalised.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0

Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
		consideration of removal options.		
Department of Defence	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Department of Transport	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 13 April 2018 Feedback summary: The Department responded that if there is a risk of a spill impacting State waters from the proposed activities, please ensure that the Department of Transport is consulted as outlined in the Department of Transport Offshore Petroleum Industry Guidance Note – Marine Oil Pollution: Response and Consultation Arrangements (December 2017).	Woodside advised that once the selected decommissioning option has been finalised, Woodside will undertake further consultation with all relevant and interested stakeholders. This will include consultation with the Department of Transport should a risk of a spill impacting State waters arise from proposed decommissioning activities.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Commonwealth Fisheries Association	Email with fact sheet and Commonwealth fisheries map	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 13 April 2018 Feedback summary:	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action:

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
		No response at the time of submission.		Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Western Australian Fishing Industry Council (WAFIC)	Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map Email with updated fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission. Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary:	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections. The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected. Response/Action: Woodside to consider
		WAFIC responded to confirm receipt of the information, and advised that with regard to the commercial fishing sector, there is little/no interest with activities in the water depths concerned with WA- 404-P. The only overlap with the industry may be with transiting vessels.		stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

Interested Stakeholder feedback for Phase One consultation for the Petroleum Activities Program

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Australian Fisheries Management Authority (AFMA)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 26 March 2018 Feedback summary: AFMA requested that Woodside confirm the email was also sent to WAFIC and the Commonwealth Fishing Industry Association.	Woodside confirmed that WAFIC and the Commonwealth Fisheries Association were contacted regarding this activity.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Page 61 of 72

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Australian Maritime Safety Authority (marine pollution)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Australian Conservation Foundation	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Page 62 of 72

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Australian Marine Oil Spill Centre (AMOSC)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Australian Petroleum Production and Exploration Association (APPEA)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Pearl Producers Association	Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
	Email with updated fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Recfishwest	Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: Recfish advised that the proximity of these activities is such that they won't affect recreational fishers.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
World Wildlife Foundation	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Page 64 of 72

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Wilderness Society	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Australian Customs Service - Border Protection Command	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions (formerly Department of Parks and Wildlife)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads Environment Plan Summary

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
International Fund for Animal Welfare	Email with fact sheet	Date: 23 March 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.
	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 4 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to consider stakeholder feedback and re- consult once decommissioning option has been selected.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Page 66 of 72

Relevant Stakeholder feedback from Phase Two consultation for the Petroleum Activities Program

Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Email with fact sheet	Date: 30 April 2018 Feedback summary: DMIRS responded to inform that they had no further feedback to provide on this proposal.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Email with fact sheet	Date: 1 May 2018 Feedback summary: AMSA advised that advice provided on 26 March remains extant for this scope of work, and also provided an update map of vessel traffic plot for the area of activity.	Woodside acknowledged that advice from AMSA dated 26 March remains extant.	Response/Action: Woodside to liaise with AHS to ensure wellheads are marked on marine charts and have reflected this as Control 2.2 in Section 6.7.1.
Email with fact sheet	Date: 30 April 2018 Feedback summary: Automatic response acknowledging receipt of email.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to follow up with DPIRD on Phase 1 feedback.
Email with forwarded fact sheet and State fisheries map (due to staff change at DPIRD)	Date: 16 May 2018 Feedback summary: The new contact at the Department thanked Woodside for the update on recent correspondence with the previous contact.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to follow up with DPIRD on Phase 1 feedback once new contact has had time to review.
Email	Date: 23 May 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: Woodside to follow up with a phone call to DPIRD to confirm
	Email with fact sheet Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map Email with forwarded fact sheet and State fisheries map (due to staff change at DPIRD)	Email with fact sheetDate: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.Email with fact sheetDate: 30 April 2018 Feedback summary: DMIRS responded to inform that they had no further feedback to provide on this proposal.Email with fact sheetDate: 1 May 2018 Feedback summary: AMSA advised that advice provided on 26 March remains extant for this scope of work, and also provided an update map of vessel traffic plot for the area of activity.Email with fact sheetDate: 30 April 2018 Feedback summary: AMSA advised that advice provided on 26 March remains extant for this scope of work, and also provided an update map of vessel traffic plot for the area of activity.Email with fact sheetDate: 30 April 2018 Feedback summary: Automatic response acknowledging receipt of email.Email with fact sheet and State fisheries mapDate: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.Email with forwarded fact sheet and State fisheries map (due to staff change at DPIRD)Date: 16 May 2018 Feedback summary: The new contact at the Department thanked Woodside for the update on recent correspondence with the previous contact.EmailDate: 23 May 2018	Email with fact sheetDate: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.Email with fact sheetDate: 30 April 2018 Feedback summary: DMIRS responded to inform that they had no further feedback to provide on this proposal.The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.Email with fact sheetDate: 1 May 2018 Feedback summary: AMSA advised that advice provided on 26 March remains extant for this scope of work, and also provided an update map of vessel traffic plot for the area of activity.Woodside acknowledged that advice from AMSA dated 26 March remains extant.Email with fact sheetDate: 30 April 2018 Feedback summary: Automatic response acknowledging receipt of email.The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map (due to staff change at DPIRD)Date: 16 May 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.Email with forwarded fact sheet and State fisheries map (due to staff change at DPIRD)Date: 16 May 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.Email with forwarded fact sheet and State fisheries map (due to staff change at DPIRD)Date: 23 May 2018The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.EmailDate: 23 May 2018The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.EmailDate: 23 May 2018The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
		submission.		further feedback on the proposed decommissioning option.
	Phone (voice message)	Date: 29 May 2018 Feedback summary: No response to phone call.	Woodside left a message to confirm if DPIRD had any further feedback on the proposed decommissioning option in permit WA-404-P, and also to request a meeting to discuss decommissioning activities involved under a separate Environment Plan.	Response/Action: Woodside to follow up with DPIRD to confirm if the Department has any further feedback on the proposed decommissioning option.
	Email	Date: 30 May 2018 Feedback summary: DPIRD responded to advise that a meeting regarding WA-404-P would be possible with the requested DPIRD representatives.	Woodside clarified that the requested meeting would be regarding separate activities to WA-404-P, and invited any further feedback on WA-404-P to be provided.	Response/Action: Woodside to await response from DPIRD.
	Email	Date: 30 May 2018 Feedback summary: DPIRD responded with feedback that reiterated advice provided by the previous Department contact dated 6 April 2018 (during Phase One consultation). DPIRD also advised Woodside to initiate and maintain ongoing consultation with WAFIC, Recfishwest, relevant representative bodies and directly with licensees in the potentially affected fisheries, and expected Woodside to re-engage once the decommissioning plan was closer to finalisation.	Woodside confirmed that it had consulted both WAFIC and Recfishwest, who had advised that they had little interest in the water depths within permit WA- 404-P. Woodside requested that DPIRD confirm advice in the most recent email remained extant considering the decommissioning option had been selected.	Response/Action: Woodside to await response from DPIRD.
	Email	Date: 30 May 2018	Woodside advised that this position was consistent with	Response/Action: Woodside to await response
This document is protected written consent of Woodside		ay be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or store	ed in any form by any process (electronic	
Controlled Ref No: A30000	•	Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523		Page 68 o

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
		Feedback summary: DPIRD apologised for mistaking the depth in which the wells were set. Previous advice dated 6 April was reiterated, namely that the Department deems the risk of a significant impact on WA aquatic resources and fisheries associated with the proposed well abandonments to be low. However, it is not supportive of leaving a 200m+ well casing on the seabed, in principle, without careful consideration of removal options.	advice provided during Phase One consultation, and considering the information provided to the Department since, namely the advice around the comparative assessment process and subsequent decision to leave the wellheads and well casing in situ, asked if the Department have any further feedback to provide.	from DPIRD.
	Email	Date: 30 May 2018 Feedback summary: DPIRD advised that given Woodside has undertaken a comparative assessment that considered options for removal, and on balance decided to leave the wellheads and well casing in situ, the Department would have no further comment to add.	Woodside thanked the Department for providing feedback, and acknowledged that the Department has no further comment to add on the decision to leave the four wellheads and well casing in-situ in permit WA-404-P.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Department of Defence	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Department of Transport	Email with updated fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Commonwealth Fisheries Association	Email with fact sheet and Commonwealth fisheries map	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Western Australian Fishing	Email with fact sheet and State	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary:	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action:

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native fi

Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Industry Council (WAFIC)	fisheries map	No response at the time of submission.		No further action required.
Department of the Environment and Energy	In accordance with Regulation 3 Environment Plan (Control Ref A	1 - for previous consultation with the De \3000RF1400583549).	epartment of Environment and Energ	gy refer to the WA-34-L Wellhead
	Email	Date: 16 April 2018 Feedback summary: Woodside requests an update on the status of the advice	Woodside acknowledges the response of DotEE	Response/Action: No further action required.
	Email	Date: 17 April 2018 Feedback summary: DotEE advise Woodside that advice has been received but not reviewed and will update Woodside.	Woodside acknowledges the response of DotEE	Response/Action: No further action required. Control 1.1 in Section 6.6.1 has been included to reflect the requirement for ongoing consultation.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Page 70 of 72

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
Australian Fisheries Management Authority (AFMA)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Australian Maritime Safety Authority (marine pollution)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Australian Conservation Foundation	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Australian Marine Oil Spill Centre (AMOSC)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Australian Petroleum Production and Exploration Association (APPEA)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Pearl Producers Association	Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Recfishwest	Email with fact sheet and State fisheries map	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
World Wildlife Foundation	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Wilderness Society	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Australian Customs Service - Border Protection Command	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.
Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions (formerly Department of Parks and Wildlife)	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

WA-404-P Exploration Wellheads Environment Plan Summary

Organisation	Method	Feedback	Woodside assessment	Woodside's response
International Fund for Animal Welfare	Email with fact sheet	Date: 27 April 2018 Feedback summary: No response at the time of submission.	The stakeholder raised no claims or objections.	Response/Action: No further action required.

This document is protected by copyright. No part of this document may be reproduced, adapted, transmitted, or stored in any form by any process (electronic or otherwise) without the specific written consent of Woodside. All rights are reserved.

Controlled Ref No: A3000GF1400792523

Revision: 0 Native file DRIMS No: 1400792523

Page 72 of 72